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HIGHLIGHTS

Revenue was HK$2,970.5 million (2018: HK$2,840.6 million),
increased by 4.6%

Profit for the year decreased by 16.7% from HK$216.1
million to HK$179.9 million

Return on average equity' was 23.4% (2018: 29.2%)

Basic earnings per share were HK140.00 cents
(2018: HK169.16 cents)

Final dividend of HK81.0 cents per share was proposed,
representing a total dividend per share for the year of
HK118.0 cents and a payout ratio of approximately 84 %

Note 1: Return on average equity is defined as profit attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company against the average total
equity at the beginning and the end of the year

M5 FINANCIAL CALENDAR
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Interim results announcement
27 November 2018

Paid date of the interim dividend
31 December 2018

Annual results announcement
28 June 2019

Closure of Register of Members
— Annual general meeting
3 September 2019 to
6 September 2019 (both days inclusive)

— Proposed final dividend
13 September 2019 to
17 September 2019 (both days inclusive)

Annual general meeting
6 September 2019

Payable date of the final dividend
On or before 3 October 2019
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased
to present the annual results of Fairwood Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2019.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Revenue of the Group for the review year increased by 4.6% year-
on-year to HK$2,970.5 million (2018: HK$2,840.6 million). Profit
attributable to equity shareholders was HK$179.9 million (2018:
HK$216.1 million), representing a decrease of 16.7%. Gross profit
margin receded to 12.9% (2018: 14.3%). Basic earnings per share
were HK140.00 cents (2018: HK169.16 cents).

DIVIDEND

The Board recommends to pay a final dividend of HK81.0 cents
(2018: HK105.0 cents) per share for the year ended 31 March
2019. Together with the interim dividend of HK37.0 cents (2018:
HK37.0 cents) per share paid during the year, the total dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2019 amounts to HK118.0 cents
(2018: HK142.0 cents) per share, representing a total distribution
of approximately 84% of the Group’s profit for the year. The
proposed final dividend will be paid on or before Thursday, 3
October 2019 to shareholders whose names appear on the
Register of Members of the Company at the close of business on
Tuesday, 17 September 2019.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Fairwood is known for delicious food with exceptional value,
prepared and delivered in a way that enhances people’s dining
experience. Our challenge is to continue building upon this in
the face of changing lifestyles, food preferences, and an ever
increasing diversity of customer groups. This year our efforts were
focused on finding new ways to enhance the Fairwood Feel Good
experience — not just for our customers, but also for the wider
community we are part of.

During the review period, we enhanced our menus to meet the
expectations of different types of diners, and further cement
our reputation as a customer-centric restaurant chain. For our
more health-conscious customers, we expanded the healthy
options under our “Tasty and Green” and “Wholesome Delights”
series and added more choices to our low-calorie breakfast sets.
Nevertheless, many of our customers still value the local flavours
we offer. For these, we developed new mass-appeal dishes, giving
customers more tasty choices.

E4.7/f NO MSG ADDED




|-l-lllIlIIIII-IIIIIIIIIII---I-----------—-—-—-

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

RREEBMBRDLR

FTERE
Chairman’s Statement

AMBEERE
EARENAERBRTRAZRRZENAR
¥ BTHBELRBBIER TEENEE - F
M RFERTASERE  EETEMEH
BATHE - BB MAE TR B AR
R BIRERARONEY - T HREEE
HIRES - EREERE -

AEBRETHE TGS ERBREEH
ABRTAR B TR IR - 20— FHIERET
R BREHMAFELERAZRETERE
1E - INPRERETIFRE - Z— 7 H - AKEN
REBREENB TRHMEREI  HREEX
BR - RARKEEEERBAHE

BT asRsEssh - AEmEROMERER DM T
1ERE - AEESRRREEE - Pk - &
g EXHREMAT  IEEE T 2R
BRI noR B BE1E - BRI - ARE I M
AKBMEMEIIKE - FRETEREMRAT
1 BB T ZEFHEEHEMERAR B2
[FLXe] - tmE— RS ETEEER -

Developing our team

The experience of dining at Fairwood entails more than tasty and
healthy food on the plate. Our customers’ enjoyment also comes
from the positive interaction with our staff. This year we have
devoted significant resources ensuring our restaurant teams were
engaged, motivated and happy in their work. We believe that only
a happy working team can achieve levels of service excellence that
will guarantee happy customers.

With respect to new staff members, we have enriched our
front-line staff orientation programmes. These programmes
deliver a wide range of introductory training courses aimed at
familiarising new colleagues with the fast food industry so that
they can quickly adapt to the working environment. For our more
experienced team members, we have enhanced our advanced
training programmes to prepare suitable candidates for career
advancement, including the possibility of taking on managerial
roles in the future.

Apart from the training we offered, we have implemented
numerous initiatives designed to create an cohesive and happy
working environment. This involves activities such as retreats,
social gatherings, movie days, and various other occasions to
foster bonding and team spirit. The combination of challenging
training opportunities, improved staff engagement activities and
continued recognition and appreciation has reinforced our “happy
culture” and led to an increase in our staff retention rate.

Ve,
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Hong Kong

During the year, Fairwood faced a challenging business
environment in the Hong Kong food and beverage sector. The
same-store sales growth rate was flat. The decline in segment
profit was mainly attributed to the rising labour costs and rental
cost. Popular demand for Fairwood has enabled us to expand new
business network in Hong Kong and we opened a total of seven
fast food stores during the year. We will continue to strengthen
our core fast food business operation and expand our foothold
further in strategic locations.

Our specialty restaurant brands, ASAP and Taiwan Bowl,
performed promisingly in the year and delivered significant sales
growth. As at 31 March 2019, we were operating ten specialty
restaurants, comprising two ASAP, two Taiwan Bowl stores, four
The Leaf Kitchen stores, one Buddies Café, and one Kenting Tea
House. Having developed the sustainable business models, we
will expand our specialty restaurant network to reach a broader
spectrum of customers.
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Mainland China

Our Mainland China operation was slightly affected during the
year, partly due to renovations at our flagship store and our
investment in a new store that is set to open in FY19/20. The
same-store sales growth rate in local currency was approximately
-6%. Throughout the review year, we continued to use a business
model built around small store operations and the considerable
use of delivery services to satisfy growing customer demand.
Despite some setbacks, we remain confident about our business in
Mainland China, and will continue to expand when opportunities
arise.

NETWORK

During the year under review, the Group opened eight new stores,
including seven in Hong Kong and one in Mainland China. As
of 31 March 2019, the Group had a total of 148 stores in Hong
Kong, including 138 fast food stores and ten specialty restaurants.
In Mainland China, the Group operates 11 stores.
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GIVING BACK TO THE COMMUNITY

The second half of our corporate mission statement is “Live a
Great Life!” We serve Hong Kong people not only by providing
great food, but also by showing care for the community in
many ways. For example, recognising that our senior citizens
are the people who built the city we call our home, we have
distributed over 180,000 “Care for Seniors” cards as at 31 March
2019, providing valuable discounts when dining at Fairwood
— a total that represents more than 10% of the entire senior
citizen population of Hong Kong. Cardholders also enjoy further
discounts and special offers during various festivals in the year.

We have been organising special community service events for
some time. This year we expanded a number of them in scope.
They included new initiatives as part of our “Fairwood Gives
Warmth Campaign”, and co-operation with charity association
FOOD-CO to help redistribute surplus food to people in need.
We have also engaged community ambassadors to help at our
charity events so we can learn more about the needs and wishes
of specific communities.

This year we worked to reduce plastic waste by completely
phasing out the use of plastic straws and plastic stirs at all our
Fairwood restaurants, replacing them with more environmentally-
friendly paper straws and wooden sticks. We are also encouraging
customers to bring their own containers for takeaway orders.




/

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

RREEBMBRDLR

FTERE
Chairman’s Statement

RE

ARG SIEE K B At & SR T 5 B R IR TS
LB - MEMPZERMAA LRRATFRRE
HhE > KREBEECD ERIFEHE L - AE
BARRRBREMEOESHSRIMNESE
REAEERYAA  BREEERNRGEE
FBHATF  URRPRRBEMTHOEERS
RARTTEE B2 EK o

[ ¥ 5 LR B - AT E ) R R L R AN IE
B BAMA - BEKRIEmERIBETEE
BB MABEALAIE  RMUSEESR
A3 25 (F AR B IMNERIEF G ) © K
F o RAHENERE S T R ERN R
A AP ABEFREBONRS - E1fE
ERWHENEE - FAE - BAMHEEERL
WIERE  RNEEMEI 2FEYEREMRE
XL - BHRCETEESR - BEHKRE
[RIBFL « ABBY | INKEED -

PROSPECTS

We are optimistic about the outlook for the food and beverage
sector in Hong Kong and Mainland China, despite some
challenges looming. Rising food costs and shortages of labour
are areas that Fairwood management is well prepared to tackle.
By taking advantage of our global sourcing strategy and strategic
menu planning featuring seasonal ingredients, we have been
able to manage our food costs well. We have also focused on
developing sophisticated but practical systems to manage labour
usage more effectively. Flexible scheduling is an important
component, as is the centralisation of certain food preparation
processes at our central food processing plant.

In face of these challenges, we will spend effort in strengthening
control of all costs, boosting revenue, reinforcing our brand
reputation and expanding our presence in Hong Kong. In
Mainland China, we will continue to develop the local market
(leveraging the popular home delivery platforms). Our forward
steps in the year ahead will involve an unremitting focus on
providing dishes characterised by variety, quality, and good
value. This will be coupled with efforts to touch our customers
personally by delivering genuinely “heart-warming” services, so
that our customers feel truly at home. We also aim to foster a
happy working environment within our organisation, cultivate
a culture of mutual appreciation between our customers and
staff, and enhance our engagement with the wider community
in meaningful endeavours. All these goals are encapsulated in
our company mission, which we will continue to promote: “Enjoy
Great Food. Live a Great Life!”.
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APPRECIATION

I would like to extend my gratitude to the management team
and to all our colleagues and staff for their dedication during the
past year. Your efforts have enabled us to achieve a satisfactory
performance in a challenging environment. The ongoing loyalty
and support of the Group's business partners and shareholders
have also been essential factors in our success. With such support,
I look forward to continued achievement from the Group that will
translate into sustainable long-term returns for our shareholders.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

At 31 March 2019, total assets of the Group were HK$1,275.8
million (2018: HK$1,291.7 million). The Group's working capital
was HK$248.3 million (2018: HK$210.3 million), represented
by total current assets of HK$667.8 million (2018: HK$665.2
million) against total current liabilities of HK$419.5 million (2018:
HK$454.9 million). Current ratio, being the proportion of total
current assets against total current liabilities, was 1.6 (2018: 1.5).
Total equity was HK$777.7 million (2018: HK$763.1 million).

The Group finances its business with internally generated cash
flows and available banking facilities. At 31 March 2019, the
Group had bank deposits and cash amounting to HK$519.9
million (2018: HK$520.6 million), representing a decrease of 0.1%.
Most bank deposits and cash were denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, United States dollars and Renminbi.

At 31 March 2019, the Group continued to maintain a healthy
financial position and had total bank loan of HK$0.1 million (2018:
HK$1.9 million) denominated in Hong Kong dollars. All of the
Group's bank borrowings were subject to the floating rate basis
and the maturity of borrowings are up to 2019. The unutilised
banking facilities were HK$216.2 million (2018: HK$213.7
million). The gearing ratio of the Group dropped to 0.0% (2018:
0.2%), which was calculated based on the total bank loan over
total equity.

PROFITABILITY

Return on average equity was 23.4% (2018: 29.2%), being profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company against the
average total equity at the beginning and the end of the year.
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the year, capital expenditure was approximately HK$95.0
million (2018: HK$151.0 million), which was mainly for the
renovation works for new and existing stores. The decrease was
mainly due to fewer stores opened compared to last year.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s receipts and expenditures were mainly denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The impact of the fluctuation
in exchange rate is immaterial to the Group’s financial position.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
cash at banks and other financial assets that are denominated in
a currency other than the functional currency of the operations
to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily United States dollars and Renminbi. As Hong Kong dollar
is pegged to United States dollar, the Group does not expect any
significant movements in the United States dollar/Hong Kong
dollar exchange rate. The Group ensures that the net exposure is
kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies
at spot rates where necessary to address short term imbalances.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

At 31 March 2019, the net book value of properties pledged as
security for banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the
Group amounted to HK$1.2 million (2018: HK$1.3 million) and no
bank deposits and cash was used to pledge any loans or banking
facilities.

COMMITMENTS

The Group’s capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2019
were HK$16.0 million (2018: HK$16.8 million).
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 March 2019, guarantees are given to banks by the
Company in respect of a mortgage loan and other banking
facilities extended to certain wholly-owned subsidiaries.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Directors do not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against the
Company under these guarantee arrangements. The maximum
liability of the Company at the end of the reporting period under
these guarantees is the amount of the facilities drawn down by
all the subsidiaries that are covered by these guarantees, being
HK$92.8 million (2018: HK$93.2 million).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in respect
of these guarantees as their fair value cannot be reliably measured
and there is no transaction price.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

At 31 March 2019, the total number of employees of the Group
was approximately 5,600 (2018: 5,600). Staff costs for the year
were approximately HK$963.2 million (2018: HK$904.7 million).
Employees’ remuneration is commensurate with their job nature,
qualifications and experience. Salaries and wages are normally
reviewed annually based on performance appraisals and other
relevant factors.

The Group continues to offer competitive remuneration
packages, share options and bonus to eligible staff, based on the
performance of the Group and the individual employees. Also, the
Group has committed to provide related training programme to
improve the quality, competence and skills of all staff.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, aged 67, is the Executive Chairman
of the Company and the Chairman of Nomination Committee of
the Company. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr Lo graduated from the Parsons School of Design
with a Bachelor Degree in Fine Arts and also attended a course
on food and beverage management at New York University.
After completion of his studies in the U.S.A. in 1977, Mr Lo
returned to Hong Kong and obtained a Master Degree in Business
Administration. In 1981, Mr Lo joined Fairwood Fast Food Limited.
In 1991, he played a major role in the listing of the Company.
Mr Lo was the Managing Director of the Company from 1991 to
1999. He was appointed the Chairman and Chief Executive of the
Company in January 2000. On 1 January 2009, Mr Lo relinquished
his role as Chief Executive but remained as the Executive
Chairman of the Company. Mr Lo is the father of Mr Lo Fai Shing
Francis, the Executive Director of the Company. Mr Lo is a director
of Neblett Investments Limited which has discloseable interests in
the shares of the Company under the provisions of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Mr Chan Chee Shing, aged 65, is the Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Chan received a Bachelor
of Arts Degree in Economics from the University of Manitoba,
Canada in 1977 and a Master of Business Administration Degree
from the University of East Asia, Macau in 1987. Mr Chan has
over 30 years’ experience in marketing. Prior to joining the Group,
he worked as a senior executive for a restaurant group which is
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Mr Chan joined the Company in 1995. He was
appointed Executive Director of the Company in January 1998
and was appointed Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 1
January 2009.
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Ms Mak Yee Mei, aged 52, is the Executive Director and
Company Secretary of the Company. She is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. Ms Mak holds a Bachelor
of Science Degree in Economics, a Master of Science Degree in
Finance and a Master Degree in Business Administration. She is
an Associate Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales, the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
as well as a Fellow Member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ms Mak has extensive experience in
auditing, accounting and financial management. Prior to joining
the Company, she had held senior management positions in
several companies the securities of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange. Ms Mak joined the Company in 2004 and was
appointed Executive Director, Company Secretary and Authorised
Representative of the Company on 1 January 2010.

Ms Peggy Lee, aged 48, is the Executive Director of the
Company. She is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. Ms Lee obtained her MBA and Bachelor Degree in
Marketing in the U.S.A.. She has over 20 years of experience in
brand building and management, product development, retail and
sales management across different industries. Prior to joining the
Company, Ms Lee had held senior management positions with a
number of well-known companies. Ms Lee joined the Company
in February 2011 and was appointed Executive Director of the
Company on 1 January 2018.

Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis, aged 36, is the Executive Director of
the Company. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr Francis Lo attended the School of Computer Science
at Carnegie Mellon University. Prior to joining the Company, Mr
Francis Lo held a senior management position at an overseas
restaurant and had over four years of experience in the food and
beverage industry including management of operations, product
development and business strategy formulation. In August 2013,
he joined the Company as a Management Trainee. In February
2015, he was promoted to Executive Manager and has been a
Specialty Restaurant General Manager since April 2018. Mr Francis
Lo is the son of Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, the Executive Chairman
of the Company. He was appointed Executive Director of the
Company on 1 January 2019.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Ng Chi Keung, aged 70, an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, Members of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr Ng holds a Master
Degree in Business Administration. He is a Fellow Member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales as well
as an Associate Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants. Mr Ng has over 35 years’ experience in finance
and management. Prior to joining the Group, he held senior
management positions with a number of well-known local and
overseas multinational companies. Mr Ng joined the Company in
1994 and was appointed an Executive Director of the Company
in November 1995. On his retirement on 1 January 2010, he was
re-designated as a Non-executive Director of the Company and
appointed as a member of the Audit Committee while remaining
as a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company at
the same time. Mr Ng was later re-designated as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 6 June 2017. Mr Ng
is an Independent Non-executive Director of Soundwill Holdings
Limited which is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin, aged 71, was appointed an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in 1991. He is
also the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a Member
of the Audit Committee. Mr Chan graduated from The University
of Hong Kong, the University of Strathclyde and The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree,
a Diploma in Social Work, a Master of Business Administration
Degree and a Master of Education Degree. He is a Fellow Member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Human Resource Management and
The Hong Kong Professional Counselling Association. Mr Chan
has over 40 years’ experience in human resources development
in public, commercial and educational sectors and is actively
engaged in the professional development of higher education
student affairs practitioners and high school careers teachers in
Mainland China and Hong Kong.

Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo, aged 54, was appointed an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in
November 2008. He is also a Member of the Audit Committee
of the Company. Mr Tsoi graduated from the University of
Western Ontario, Canada with an Honours Degree in Business
Administration in 1986.
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Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen, aged 66, was appointed an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in
September 2000. He is also the Members of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. Dr
Lau holds a Doctorate Degree in Business Administration from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, an MBA Degree from
the University of Calgary in Canada and a Master of Buddhist
Studies from The University of Hong Kong. He is a member of The
Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants and the Society of
Certified Management Accountants of Canada. Dr Lau had over
12 years of management and accounting experience in the private
and public sectors in Canada prior to returning to Hong Kong in
1987. Dr Lau is currently the Chairman and Chief Executive of
Giordano International Limited which is listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange. He is also the Chairman of the Advisory
Committees on management and marketing at The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University as well as Adjunct Professor of Marketing at
City University of Hong Kong.

Mr Peter Wan Kam To, aged 66, was appointed an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in September 2009. He
is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a Member of
the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr Wan is a Fellow
Member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He
was a partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong & China
firm with extensive experience in auditing, finance, advisory and
management. Mr Wan is currently an Independent Non-executive
Director of several companies listed on the Stock Exchange,
namely A-Living Services Co., Ltd., China Resources Land Limited,
Haitong International Securities Group Limited, Harbin Bank
Co., Ltd., KFM Kingdom Holdings Limited and Target Insurance
(Holdings) Limited while holding the position of Independent
Non-executive Director of China World Trade Centre Co., Ltd.
which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr Wan is also
the Treasurer and Council Member of the Open University of
Hong Kong. Mr Wan was an Independent Non-executive Director
of Dalian Port (PDA) Company Limited until 28 June 2017,
Huaneng Renewables Corporation Limited until 28 June 2019,
Kerry Logistics Network Limited until 31 May 2019, S. Culture
International Holdings Limited until 10 July 2017 and Shanghai
Pharmaceuticals Holding Co., Ltd. until 27 June 2019, which are
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Fairwood Holdings Limited
(the "Company”) has pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2019.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda. Its registered office is
situated at Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton
HM10, Bermuda and principal place of business is situated at
2/F, TRP Commercial Centre, 18 Tanner Road, North Point, Hong
Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is principally engaged in the operation of fast food
restaurants and property investments. The principal activities and
other particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages
169 and 170 of the annual report.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group and an indication of likely future developments in the
Group's business, can be found in the “Business Review"” and
“Prospects” set out on pages 7 to 12 of this annual report while
the risk management policy is on pages 46 to 49 of the Corporate
Governance Report.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations
of the operations of the Group during the financial year are set
out in note 3(b) to the financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORTING

As part of the community, the Group strives to support the
environmental protection works, to strictly comply with the
relevant rules and regulations and to consider the material aspects
of our stakeholders. The comprehensive information related to
our operating principles on our employees, food quality and
safety, environment and customers will be further discussed in
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report, which will
be published in the websites of the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in due
course.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the aggregate amount of
revenue and purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers represent less than 30% (2018: less than
30%) of the Group's total revenue and purchases respectively.

RECOMMENDED DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of HK37.0 cents (2018: HK37.0 cents)
per share was paid on 31 December 2018. The Board now
recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK81.0 cents
(2018: HK105.0 cents) per share in respect of the year ended 31
March 2019.

More information about the Company’s dividend policy is set out
in the Corporate Governance Report.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$155,000 (2018: HK$6,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company issued
1,003,000 ordinary shares of the Company pursuant to share
option schemes and purchased 145,500 shares of the Company
on the Stock Exchange. Shares were repurchased during the year
to reduce the dilutive effect of granting share options. Details of
movements in the share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in note 22 to the financial statements.

Save as set out in note 22(c)(ii) to the financial statements, there
were no other purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s
listed securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during
the year.
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DISTRIBUTABILITY OF RESERVES

At 31 March 2019, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company was
HK$393,741,000 (2018: HK$375,948,000). After the end
of the reporting period, the Directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) proposed a final dividend of HK81.0 cents (2018:
HK105.0 cents) per share amounting to HK$104,207,000 (2018:
HK$134,183,000). The dividend has not been recognised as a
liability at the end of the reporting period.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman)

Chan Chee Shing (Chief Executive Officer)

Mak Yee Mei

Peggy Lee

Lo Fai Shing Francis (appointed on 1 January 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ng Chi Keung

Joseph Chan Kai Nin

Peter Lau Kwok Kuen

Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo

Peter Wan Kam To

In accordance with Bye-laws 100 of the Company, Mr Lo Fai Shing
Francis, appointed on 1 January 2019, will hold office until the
next annual general meeting of the Company. Mr Lo Fai Shing
Francis shall then retire at the Company’s forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-
election.

In accordance with Bye-laws 109 and 189(viii) of the Company, Ms
Mak Yee Mei and Mr Ng Chi Keung shall retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Ms Mak Yee Mei and Mr Ng
Chi Keung, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a fixed
term of three years and are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.
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EENBSTHRABNREEG » 8B DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
TREESHIEADHESNKE AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

BAATERB(ESRBEEMY([FHE  As at 31 March 2019, the interests or short positions of the
Bl 1) B352GRN ELMEET - sigfR  Directors and chief executives of the Company and their associates
(EHBEITAEEETESL SHHIZESTE])  in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
([EESPR| D AEM AR AR T LB and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
B ARTNEEZENSZSTHABMMIE  of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO™)) as recorded
MBEN_Z-NEF=A=+—HBHEAXLRLQF in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
REFEEB (AFAEBHIEFIEXVERATHE R Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
TFEIMARG - ARG REEBMEZSK  and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
2 Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
were as follows:

(a) EA R BINHE R (a) Interests in the Company
BREEB¥I1TEER
Ordinary Shares of HK$1 each
RBERE
- TR (BB RS
2 e R
- RAHE BO
g Number of
3 underlying
z shares Percentage
S pursuant of total
= Personal Family Corporate Other  to share issued
£ interests  interests  interests  interests options shares
i
Eé %R%  Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 109,000 - - 55,435,384 - 55,544,384 43.17%
k (WizE1)
% (Note 1)
&
s BRER  Chan Chee Shing 900,000 - - - 600,000 1,500,000 1.17%
B&E Mak Yee Mei 1,180,000 - - - 220,000 1,400,000 1.09%
ZBr Peggy Lee 352,000 - - - 143,000 495,000 0.38%
Z#E#% Lo Fai Shing Francis - - - 55,435,384 80,000 55,515,384 43.15%
(FEE1)
(Note 1)
MIEET © bt 55 BR 19 £ Neblett Investments Limited Note 1: These shares were held by Neblett Investments Limited (“Neblett”)
( [ Neblett ] ) K CFJ Holdings Limited and CFJ Holdings Limited (“CFJ"). These companies are beneficially
(TCRD B - ZE AT aMENE owned by two separate trusts of which Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
HELERERALEARBSERSERD and Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis are the discretionary objects. Both
ERMEREE - BRBLERBERS Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung and Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis, by virtue
R EAZEETNREERE R of their interests in the trusts as the discretionary objects and as
@ XARIS RARRIRIRITERF RATT the Executive Chairman and Executive Director of the Company
B WA EREENeblett XCFIFI5 A respectively, were deemed interested in the shares held by Neblett

MR1D S © and CFJ.
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(b) EAPEREBR AR ([ KERE D)

oy e

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (continued)

(b) Interests in Fairwood Fast Food Limited (“FFFL”)

ERERELEROEE
Number of non-voting deferred shares

PN £ Kk DA Hii gz

ZEF#%  Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung

Personal Family  Corporate Other
interests interests interests interests
11,500 - 279,357 - 290,857
(Pf5E2)
(Note 2)

M52 ¢ %1% FPengto International Limited
B RARBERABTEBERSE -

LB S RER o

Br bl NI S ARt &) | — S PR B
SN AR RIERFE SR DI F 35216 R E
BENELMBETR - HRREEST R
H AR ARBMBRAAR  R-F
—NWE=ZA=1+—8  ARAEEFHES
TTBA B sl Al P9 6 (o] BL 4B sl AR+ )\ 5%
B F L R R AR R R E A FE
B (R AR ROIEXVEMENER)D
Betn - MHRARB (D SR HE R RO () H fb 25
HORE -

EENBZRBTRABRBEARABRE
SIPT A MR AR AF IS IR BN 3T AR

FHE—fL -

Note 2: These shares were held by Pengto International Limited, a
company owned by Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung solely.

All the interests stated above represent long positions.

Apart from the foregoing and those disclosed under the
section “Share Option Scheme” below, as at 31 March 2019,
none of the Directors or chief executives of the Company
or any of their spouses or children under eighteen years of
age had any other interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which had been entered in the register kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

Details of Directors’ and chief executives’ interests under the
Company’s share option scheme are also set out in the section
“Share Option Scheme” below.
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a) BIREFTEIZENEE AT AR 2 ¥
BRARBEBEFTAS  BERAREBERK
BRNEEEE  EF(BEIFNTESR
BYERTES) I B ABREMIES
FEEI DR AEBBRAR A G T EEIH
B REEECERERESARRKRRE ZF
% DMEEARR A RERIEKI

(b) REEBHERTEIET - EFERENIBTEF
EAABERARARZBEE  URBA
RE D RERTAFER T =EHH
EmE  (\WERERTAHERERR
P B MEXMBORODKTE - (HRE
EBRRER T YR AES R B AR
5 B $RIE R AR A B 10 25 Y 8 i) Bk
fAEfE -

O RZE—NFARAZT+NB - BREBER
HEETEI A TR ITH AR D 48 855,003,528
B - G2 B AR RIEEITIRAL3.87% °
RIFEREE > S2HEEREZERE
EYEBIEMEA+ @A BE A REN
EHEETEBEARNAREETRG M
1% °

(d) BEREASZERMATF BT ——
FAALBE-ZE-_—FNARBIL-

BE-_Z-NF=A=+—HILFERN &&
BEEKIEESRIBERETS - LLREBE
TTERTFARBARARBRMD(R=_ZE—NF=
A=+—HWERMEAEE2765L(ZF
— )\ : B%¥30.8070) ) WERE - AMES
T e o

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

As at 31 March 2019, details of the share option scheme of the
Company (“Share Option Scheme”) are as follows:

(@) The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and
retain the best quality personnel for the development of the
Company’s businesses; to provide incentives or rewards to
any employee, Director (including Non-executive Director and
Independent Non-executive Director) or officer of any member
of the Group or any related trust or company (the “Option
Scheme Qualifying Grantee”) and to promote the long term
financial success of the Company by aligning the interests of
option holders to shareholders of the Company.

(b) Under the Share Option Scheme, Directors were authorised, at
their discretion, to invite any of the Option Scheme Qualifying
Grantee to take up options to subscribe for shares in the
Company at a price which shall not be less than whichever is
the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date
of offer; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer and (jii)
the nominal value of a share.

(c) As at 28 June 2019, the total number of shares available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme is 5,003,528 shares
which represented approximately 3.87% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at that date. The maximum
entitlement for any one participant under the Share Option
Scheme shall not in any twelve months period up to the date
of grant exceed 1% of the Company’s shares in issue.

(d) The life of the Share Option Scheme is 10 years commencing
on 7 September 2011 and expiring on 6 September 2021.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Directors and
employees of the Group had the following interests in options to
subscribe for shares of the Company (market value per share at 31
March 2019 was HK$27.65 (2018: HK$30.80)) granted for HK$1
consideration under the Share Option Scheme.



MBARiEEH 8 &) SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
WoZZ—NE=F=+—8  BREZIET  Asat 31 March 2019, the total grant date fair value of unexercised
THRITFPERBINAEBRINELZRI%GRE  vested options and unvested options, measured in accordance

FIEEN ()T ST BRI ERE FAN AR
BIEMEAE9,686,0007T( - — \F :
78 #6,433,0007T) © BEAREIL KR LT - EH
B BEAEREEEBERERBIRAD
AIEREESE I TERRR o REFHBRE
RZEBE-—NF=ZA=+—HBHHETEFE  A2Q
A A5 7018 A7 102,058,000 ( — &2 — )\
& ##91,624,0007T) ©

with the accounting policy set out in note 1(q)ii) to the financial
statements, amounted to HK$9,686,000 (2018: HK$6,433,000)
under the Share Option Scheme. The options are unlisted. Once
vested, each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share of HK$1 each of the Company. Assuming that
all the options outstanding as at 31 March 2019 are exercised,
the Company will receive proceeds of HK$102,058,000 (2018:
HK$91,624,000).

RZ8-NF SEERE

BA-H PRERE  RAAN

MR EARTH ER{TR RFRAN kiR

REE  BRERE  RREEA BhEsR ShimE  THUHE

Weighted

average

price of

(Closing (losing

price per price per

Number Number Number Number Number share share

ofoptions  ofoptions  ofoptions ofoptions  of options immediately  immediately

outstanding granted lapsed  exerdsed  outstanding Exerse  beforedate  hefore date

Exercisable ~ at 1 April during during during ~ at31 March priceper  ofgrantof of exercise

Date granted period 2018 the year the year the year 019 share options  of options

it it i

HKS HKS HKS

hEm(#2) “3-RERACTE -E-fEmA-RE 700,000 - - (100000) 600,000 070 080 970
Chan Chee Shing 0hpil20Ns  —F-E=f=1-R
(Diector) (FsE1)
1 April 2016 to
31 March 202
(Note 1)

ReEz) SE-RFMACTE EI-REEA-EE 30000 - - B0 2000 070 080 270
Mak Yee Mei 0hpil20Ns  —F--E=f=1-R
(Diector) (FsE1)
1 April 2016 to
31 March 202

(Note 1)
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Date granted

22523 () 23-REBAZTA
Peggy Lee (a) 20 Aprl 2015
(Director)
() -5-RETAR
(o) 2 October 2015
BE% () 3-REMAZTH
(EE A (8)20 Apr 2015
ZEpE
~A-FEEf)
Lo Fai Shing Francis
(Director,
anpointed on
1 January 2019)

() 25-\¥EA-1A
(0) 20 April 2018

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

R-&-NE
BA-H
ATkl

fEds  BhESE

Number

of options

outstanding

Exercisable ~at 1 April
period 2018

2 ERA-AZ
i 2
(i)

1 April 2016 t0

31 March 2022

(Note 1)

150,000

S 45,000
ZECCEAAZTE
7))
1 October 2016 10
30 Septerber 2022
(Note2)

2 ERA-AZ 40,000
i o i
(Bist)
1 April 2016 t0
31 March 2022
(Note 1)

“E-NERA-RE -

“ECRECACT-R
(i3)

1 April 20190

31 March 2025

(Note3)

FRRTH
LU

Number
of options
granted
during
the year

40,000

FRANN
FRiME

Number
of options
[apsed
during
the year

FhkR
RhERA

Number
of options
exercsed
during
the year

(40,000)

(12,000)

RZB-1F
Zhzt-R
FigH
FRidE

Number

of options
outstanding
at 31 March
019

110,000

33,000

40,000

40,000

SRfRE

Exercise
price per
share
A
HKS

2070

0N

2070

30.14

SRERE
BFaaM
SRUmE

(Closing
price per
share
immediately
before date
of grant of
options
i

HKS

2080

2190

2080

3025

BRERR
frkAAN
shing
HinE
Weighted
average
price of
(losing
price per
share
immediately
hefore date
of exercise
of options
it

HKS

3005

2650
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Employees

fe8

Employees

fe&

Employees

Date granted

“5-TFRAZTH
20 April 2015

5 \FmAZTH
20 April 2018

“E-J\EtZRTNR
18 Decernber 2018

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

H-%-N%F

mA-A

K

GECT I E

Number

of options

outstanding

Exercisable at 1 April
period 2018

“I-RERA-RE 3188000
ZBIZERETA
liEa)
1 April 2016 to
31 March 2022
(Note 1)

“Z-ERA-AZ -
“5-REZAz1-A
(h3)
1 April 201910
31 March 2025
(Note3)

ZENETA-RE -
ZECREAAZTH
(Biita)
1 October 2019 to
30 September 2025
(Noted)

FRRTH
RhEgA

Number
of options
granted
during
the year

1,060,000

70,000

Number
of options
[apsed
during
the year

(132,000)

(40,000)

FRfin
RhEgA

Number
of options
exercised
during
the year

(771,000)

NZE-0E
=A=t-8
Kk
Byl

Number

of options
outstanding
at 31 March
019

2,285,000

1,000,000

30,000

BRfikE

Exercise
price per
share
bt
HKS

2070

30.14

5642

LiRRE
BFRAH
SRUTE

(Closing
price per
share
immediately
before date
of grant of
options
#

HKS

2080

3025

%63

BRERE
frk AN
Shing
HMmE
Weighted
average
price of
closing
price per
share
immediately
hefore date
of exercise
of options
it

HKS

3001




/

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

RREEBMBRDLR

EXTEWME

Report of the Directors

M EstE 2
MisET : BERRAESD ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ%?&]ﬁ% 0% R ZE
/\Emﬂ A% 15%)5A T— A
:E 20%)5A —N\FOA—-—BRE -
25% 7 nimﬂ ABBRHRT30%R
:g_zimﬁ ARE

M2 : ERESDTHRUTRHESEE  10%R_F

fﬁﬁﬂﬂfElE%% C15%RZE—+F+ A
*E zo%ﬁA— —N\F+A—HEB
25% % niﬂ% EE%J%&@%TEO%?&A

MFE3 : BBRRED ﬂ%ﬁ%T%%ﬁE'O%F*
fhimﬂ HEE - 15% RN _ZTFMWMA
R m%ﬁfg:—imﬂ BEE -
ﬁ%m_g::imﬂ ABBRHRT30%R
“E-CFNA-HBRE &

MisE4 : BBRAED ﬂ%EMT%@ﬁE'W%F*
fh¢+ﬂ HEE - 15% R _ZTF 1+ A
BEE - m%ﬁfg:—¢+ﬂ BEE -
5% R _E__F+A—HBBERBET30%R
—EZ=FTHA—HEB-

BHEEER TRIRENS T EREMNEHEREN
EFHENER - D RIEF BB RE M T
Q)i & FfizE19 o

B B ESN  RARFEAEMEERE - ARF K
HAMMBARHESBEIMRLTY - BUEAR
AEE  Se{TRABREEFEBH KD
T\ F R A LB B AR R S H AL A48
BorE (AN AR FRAIFMENER) KD
dEEEMER -

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Note 1: These options shall vest in five tranches as follows: 10% on 1 April
2016, 15% on 1 April 2017, 20% on 1 April 2018, 25% on 1 April
2019 and the remaining 30% on 1 April 2020;

Note 2: These options shall vest in five tranches as follows: 10% on 1 October
2016, 15% on 1 October 2017, 20% on 1 October 2018, 25% on 1
October 2019 and the remaining 30% on 1 October 2020;

Note 3: These options shall vest in five tranches as follows: 10% on 1 April
2019, 15% on 1 April 2020, 20% on 1 April 2021, 25% on 1 April
2022 and the remaining 30% on 1 April 2023; and

Note 4: These options shall vest in five tranches as follows: 10% on 1 October
2019, 15% on 1 October 2020, 20% on 1 October 2021, 25% on 1
October 2022 and the remaining 30% on 1 October 2023.

Information on the accounting policy for share options granted
and the weighted average value per option is provided in note
1(g)(ii) and note 19 to the financial statements respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors or chief executives of the Company or any of
their spouses or children under eighteen years of age to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations within the meaning
of the SFO.



FLFIRFIHEEED SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL
OF THE COMPANY

RN T ERBLHEDIE336EETEMHEFNE  As at 31 March 2019, the interests or short positions of every

SR SR A RNmART AR - B4 person, other than the Directors and chief executives of the

NAIEERESTHRAESN  EATHR=ZF Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

—NF=ZA=+—BEEARARKRMDMMEBI as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company

HEDSOREB T ¢ pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company, were as follows:

HER/® HEBRTREG
BESANR G HWEETL

Shares directly Percentage of
and/or total issued

indirectly held shares

(i) Neblett(FizE1) (i) Neblett (Note 1) 48,775,384 37.91%

(i) CFJ (i) CFJ 6,660,000 5.18%

(iii)  Winning Spirit International (iii)  Winning Spirit International 48,775,384 37.91%
Corporation([WsIC |) (F#3E1) Corp. ("WSIC") (Note 1)

(iv) HSBC International Trustee (iv) HSBC International Trustee 55,459,384 43.11%
Limited (THITL]) (Bff3E2) Limited (“HITL”) (Note 2)

MEET : b SR RIER — B Neblett EBEFFA 2R Note 1: These interests represented the same block of shares directly held by
1 ° WSICHEANebletth]100% # & - SR A Neblett. WSIC owned 100% interest in Neblett and was therefore
B NeblettPTE R B IRMD AR - R deemed interested in the shares directly held by Neblett; and

M5E2 « BHITLE AR EM ST 2L AMAA24,000  Note 2: Except for 24,000 shares held by HITL as trustee for other trusts, these

IRDHN - Lt w19 B R —#t B Neblett &2 CF) interests represented the same block of shares directly held by Neblett
BEFEZBRNG - HITLD AMEHRERE K E and CFJ. HITL, in its capacity as a trustee of two separate trusts of
(BRI AEIE RS R) REBASE(RB which Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (as founder and discretionary object)
BREREHR)NELEIZTEA  BHAWSICR and Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis (as discretionary object), owned 100%
CRIR)100% 1% - MR R IER EME QBT interest in WSIC and CFJ and was therefore deemed interested in the
HERBEROEOER shares directly held by these companies.

PR BITR - All the interests stated above represent long positions.

Br EFr TSN RZZE—NF=A=+— Save as disclosed above, no other interest or short position in the
B RARRERESGOEI6IFREMME  shares or underlying shares of the Company were recorded in the
FRERMATHE - WEERARRRMEIERE  register required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO as
MR E iR SOR B o at 31 March 2019.
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HEVARAR(EY)HHAERHSR

IE A TS $RR MY RE26(c) PIAFAL - RERERE
REZEA-BEPENEE —HREE  BHE
HH_F-N\FZA-HERH=F - ARE
YRERABEE(ARBESZ)NBEA - &
HEHARABRFEBERS - KRERE
RZPEZRZFENNEERIZSHBWT :

AFEEMEE Rent for the year
Heke Rental deposits

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

The particulars of continuing connected transaction of the Group
is set out below in compliance with the reporting requirements of
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

Tenancy agreement with Hibony Limited (“Hibony")

As detailed in note 26(c) to the financial statements, FFFL leased a
property from Hibony for three years from 1 March 2018 for the
operation of a fast food restaurant. As Hibony is an associate of
Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (a Director of the Company), the entering
into the lease constituted continuing connected transaction for
the Company. Details of rent and deposits paid by FFFL relating to
the property for the above transaction are as follows:

S e
2019 2018

Fr T
HK$'000 HK$'000
3,120 3,043

780 780




HEREXS (#)
BEEVARAR(EMY )WHEERZE)

REREETRAUFVIATERE L E 755

BERS([BRARSORE  WIUFRTE
SEEMAMBETARRS

(i) E—REAEEGEERET

(ii) %R — M EE G HIRBTBER A E
T ABIULE =7 R A RFGETT -

JiE]

o>

&

(i) 12 558 75 B 52 5 B0 15 6 T L 40 ok O
AFRAE - AFARRARROERLF
AT 5 R

(ivVEBE-Z—NF=A=+-BIEE " &
ML OMEBETBAEFRSEEE -

ARBGBMCEZRZBEEGIMAE
B HCE B %R TIEER])E 30005k JFEZ
FEMBEFBERNREIE]  X2RE
B AFE 7405 R EBC LM AR R ATt #F
BRABEXSHOZHBEN RN BAKENEE
BERXSELRE - RIZELEWHRAE14A56
- ZBEIER AR EMER FNLES
Kiswm - BHEREEENRME - ARFER
T2 B K 1 O Bl 7K 2 3B XL P

EERXS  REXSHHIZ

FEBEIHRENWEBHRZHBERIER
FRNNFEBENHEBRESS I RHERE
Bif5E26 °

BR EALPRESN - MAFEEMBERFER - &
REHENBARGERANRENEBERR
HEMEZEERAHEREEANENEER
5 BHEAHK

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION (continued)

Tenancy agreement with Hibony Limited (“Hibony")
(continued)

In compliance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in connection
with the above continuing connected transaction with Hibony (the
“Transaction”), the Independent Non-executive Directors have
reviewed and confirmed that the Transaction has been entered
into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business;

(ii) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable than those available to or from independent third
parties;

(i) in accordance with the terms of agreement governing the
Transaction on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole; and

(iv) the aggregate value of the Transaction for the year ended 31
March 2019 has not exceeded the maximum aggregate annual
value.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transaction in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transaction in accordance with Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Details of the continuing connected transaction and material
related party transactions are set out in “Continuing connected
transaction” on pages 32 and 33 and in note 26 to the financial
statements respectively.

Save for the above, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to the Group’s business to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save for the share option schemes as set out in this annual
report, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option schemes as set out in this annual report,
no equity-linked agreement that would or might result in the
Company issuing shares, or that required the Company to enter
into an agreement that would or might result in the Company
issuing shares, was entered into by the Company during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year.

DEBENTURES

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company did not issue
any debenture.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the Bye-law of the Company, every director or other
officer of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets of the Company from and against all losses
or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto.

The Company has maintained directors’ liability insurance which
is in force throughout the year and up to the date of this annual
report to provide appropriate insurance cover for the Directors.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws and the laws in Bermuda.

BANK LOAN

Particulars of the bank loan of the Group at 31 March 2019 are
set out in note 17 to the financial statements.
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HITEE
Executive Chairman

/R ZE-NFRAZTNH
Hong Kong, 28 June 2019

FIVE-YEAR GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 171 of the
annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Particulars of the investment properties of the Group are shown
on page 172 of the annual report.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees in Hong Kong under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. Particulars
of the MPF Scheme are set out in note 18 to the financial
statements.

Employees engaged by the Group outside Hong Kong are covered
by appropriate local defined contribution retirement schemes
pursuant to the local labour rules and regulations.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Fairwood Holdings Limited
(the “Company"”) is committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance practices to safeguard the interests of
shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability.

The Company has complied with the code provisions as set out
in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “CG Code"”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
throughout the year ended 31 March 2019, save and except that
the Chairman and/or Managing Director (Chief Executive Officer)
of the Company are not subject to retirement by rotation, details
of which and the reasons for the deviation are stated below.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for securities
transactions by the Directors of the Company (the “Director(s)”).
Following specific enquiry by the Company, all Directors confirmed
their compliance with the required standards set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2019.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested
in the Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership
and control of the Company and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. All Directors have taken decisions objectively
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.
The Board recognises that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of all Directors, as such, it has adopted
terms of reference for corporate governance functions that are in
line with the CG Code.

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making in major
matters of the Company, including the approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal
control, financial information, appointment of directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

All Directors have been consulted on all major and material
matters of the Company. With the advice and services of the
Company Secretary, the Executive Chairman seeks to ensure
that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings and receive adequate and reliable information in a timely
manner. Directors may choose to take independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expenses,
upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are delegated to the Executive Committee which
comprises the five Executive Directors and the senior management
of the Company. The delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transactions entered into by the above-
mentioned officers.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises the following
Directors:

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman)

Chan Chee Shing (Chief Executive Officer)

Mak Yee Mei

Peggy Lee

Lo Fai Shing Francis (appointed on 1 January 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED(s)")

Ng Chi Keung
Joseph Chan Kai Nin
Peter Lau Kwok Kuen
Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo
Peter Wan Kam To

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three INEDs with at least one INED possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The representation of INEDs is
more than one third of the Board. A list containing the names of
the Directors with their roles and functions has been published
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
Biographical details of all Directors are set out on pages 17 to
20 of this annual report. Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive
Chairman) is the father of Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis. Other than the
family relationship disclosed above, there is no relationship among
directors of the Board and in particular, between the Executive
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Company has received from each of the INED an annual
confirmation in writing of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. Furthermore, the Board is not aware of
any relationship or circumstances which would interfere with the
exercise of the independent judgment of the INEDs. Accordingly,
the Company considers that all the INEDs are independent.

Four full Board meetings were held during the year ended 31
March 2019 and attendance record of each Director is set out
below:

HERE
BRRE

Number of
meetings
attended/held

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman) 4/4
Chan Chee Shing (Chief Executive Officer) 4/4
Mak Yee Mei 4/4
Peggy Lee 4/4
Lo Fai Shing Francis (@ppointed on 1 January 2019) 2/4
Independent Non-executive Directors

Ng Chi Keung 3/4
Joseph Chan Kai Nin 3/4
Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 4/4
Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 4/4
Peter Wan Kam To 4/4
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All Directors well understand their responsibilities to present
a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of annual
and interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and other
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements. The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”). The statement of the auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of
the Company is set out on pages 52 to 59 in the Independent
Auditor’s Report. The Directors, having made appropriate
enquiries, confirm that there are no material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2019, all Directors have
participated in continuous professional development activities
either by attending training courses or by reading materials to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills on the roles,
functions and skills of a director of a listed corporation.

The Company Secretary provides regular updates on the latest
changes and development of the Listing Rules, corporate
governance practices and other regulatory regime to the Directors
with reading materials relating to the latest development
of regulatory requirements related to director’s duties and
responsibilities.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are
Messrs Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung and Chan Chee Shing respectively
whose roles are segregated and are not exercised by the same
individual.

Code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code stipulates that every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, should
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years; however, the Chairman and the Managing Director of the
Company are not subject to retirement by rotation under the Bye-
laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”). The Board considers that
the exemption of both the Chairman and the Managing Director
(the Chief Executive Officer) of the Company from such retirement
by rotation provisions would provide the Group with strong
and consistent leadership, efficient use of resources, effective
planning, formulation and implementation of long-term strategies
and business plans. The Board believes that it would be in the
best interest of the Company for such Directors to continue to be
exempted from retirement by rotation provisions.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board is empowered under the Bye-laws to appoint any
person as a director of the Company either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board. Procedures for shareholders to
propose a person for election as a director are available at the
website of the Company.

According to the Bye-laws, (i) new Directors appointed by the
Board during the year shall hold office until the first annual
general meeting after their appointment and shall then be eligible
for re-election; and (ii) at each annual general meeting, one-
third of the Directors (other than any Director holding office as
Chairman or Managing Director) for the time being or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office
provided that each Director (other than any Director holding office
as Chairman or Managing Director) including those appointed for
a specific term shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

Currently, all INEDs are appointed for a specific term of three
years, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by the
shareholders in accordance with the Bye-laws.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises two INEDs, Dr Peter Lau
Kwok Kuen and Mr Peter Wan Kam To. Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee. The written terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee are in line with the
CG Code and available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, identifies and
recommends to the Board suitable candidate(s) to stand for
election by shareholders at annual general meeting, or when
necessary, to fill vacancies on the Board.

Under the Policy for Diversity of the Company (“Diversity Policy”),
appointment of Board members will be made on merit with
due regard of benefits of diversity on the Board such as having
differences in the skills, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, gender, age and other qualities of
directors. The Board believes that the Diversity Policy will promote
effective decision-making and better governance and allow the
Board to consider a wider range of options and solutions to
corporate issues.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy (“Nomination
Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and nomination
procedure when considering the appointment and re-appointment
of Directors to ensure a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirement of the Company’s
business.

The selection criteria including but not limited to the following:

(@) Age, gender, skills, cultural and educational background,
professional experience and other qualities of the candidate;

(b) Effect of such appointment on the Board’s composition and
diversity;

(c) Potential contributions a candidate can bring to the Board in
terms of qualifications, skills, experience, independence and
gender diversity;

(d) Needs of the Board for particular expertise, skills or experience;
(e) Commitment to devote adequate time to discharge his or her
duties as a member of the Board;

(f) Any potential or actual conflict of interests that may arise if the
candidate is selected;

(g) For appointment of the INED, the number of years the
candidate has served and the factors as set out in the Listing
Rules for determining the independence; and

(h) Other factors considered to be relevant by the Nomination
Committee on a case-by-case basis.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

Under the Nomination Policy, nomination procedure is summarised
as below:

(a

For appointment of new Director(s) by the Board, the
Nomination Committee is delegated by the Board to identify
suitable candidates (or may seek assistance from external
consultancy agencies, if necessary) and evaluate potential
candidates based on the selection criteria set out above
through a physical meeting (unless it is impractical that the
physical meeting be held) to rank the candidates by order
of preference based on the selection criteria and determine
whether the candidate is qualified for directorship. The
Nomination Committee shall provide all relevant information
of the potential candidate (may including the terms and
conditions of the appointment) and make recommendation
to the Board for consideration and the Board, if considered
appropriate, shall approve the appointment of the proposed
candidate as new Director(s).

(b) For re-appointment of Director(s) in a general meeting of

the Company, the Nomination Committee is delegated by
the Board to review the overall contribution made by the
retiring Director(s) and take into account the selection criteria
set out above before make recommendation to the Board
for re-appointment. Also, the Nomination Committee shall
conduct such review through a physical meeting (unless it
is impractical that a physical meeting be held). Based on the
review made by the Nomination Committee, the Board shall
make recommendation to the shareholders of the Company
("Shareholders”) on retiring Director(s) standing for re-election
at the annual general meeting and provide the biographical
information of the retiring Director(s) in accordance with the
Listing Rules to enable the Shareholders to make an informed
decision on the re-election of such Director(s) at the annual
general meeting.

For any candidate (other than a Retiring Director(s)) nominated
by the Board or Shareholders to stand for election as a Director
in a general meeting of the Company, the Nomination
Committee shall, upon receipt of the proposal of nomination
and the biographical information of the candidate(s), evaluate
his/her/their suitability based on the same criteria set out
above. The Board, under advice of the Nomination Committee,
may or may not make recommendation to Shareholders
on their voting to the proposed election in the relevant
announcement and/or circular to Shareholders.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2019, two Nomination
Committee meetings were held to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board; to assess the independence of INEDs and to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of new
Director/re-appointment of retiring Directors pursuant to the
Nomination Policy.

The attendance record of each member is as follows:

HERE

BRRE

Number of
meetings
attended/held

HTES Executive Director

EFG(EE) Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Chairman) 2/2

BYFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors

2 3 4 Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 2/2

F 88 Peter Wan Kam To 2/2
FlERE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
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The Remuneration Committee comprises three INEDs, Mr Ng Chi
Keung, Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin and Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen.
Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. Remuneration Committee adopts written terms of
reference that are in line with the CG Code and are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and members of senior
management and other related matters.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, two Remuneration
Committee meetings were held to review the remuneration of
Directors annually, the remuneration of the newly appointed
director, assess performance of executive directors and approve
the terms of executive directors’ service contracts.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The attendance record of each member is as follows:

HERE,
BRRH

Number of
meetings
attended/held

BYFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors

BRERF (/&) Joseph Chan Kai Nin (Chairman) 2/2

RETR Ng Chi Keung 2/2

2 B 4 Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 2/2
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The Audit Committee comprises four INEDs, Mr Ng Chi Keung,
Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin, Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo and Mr Peter
Wan Kam To. Mr Peter Wan Kam To is the chairman of the Audit
Committee which meets at least twice a year with the Company’s
auditor.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the
financial statements and reports and considering any significant
or unusual items raised by the qualified accountant, internal
auditor or external auditors before submission to the Board for
approval. It is also responsible for reviewing the scope and nature
of the external audit and the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control system and associated procedures. The Audit
Committee has written terms of reference which are in line with
the CG Code and are available on websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, two Audit Committee
meetings were held to review the interim and annual financial
statements of the Company; to review the remuneration of
external auditors; to discuss with the external auditors their
independence and the nature and scope of the audit; to review
the internal audit programme, findings and management’s
responses; and to evaluate the system of internal controls and risk
management of the Group.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The attendance record of each member is as follows:

HERE,
ERRE

Number of
meetings
attended/held

BYFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors

FERE (L) Peter Wan Kam To (Chairman) 2/2

RETR Ng Chi Keung 2/2

PREEEF Joseph Chan Kai Nin 2/2

BERX Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 2/2
54 L b AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
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During the year ended 31 March 2019, the fees paid/payable to
the auditor in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by
the auditor of the Company were as follows:

—E-hE —TN\F

2019 2018

BT T BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHEIZEEENE Review fee for interim results 586 546

TEEEEZE Audit fee for final results 3,367 3,304
BIRRETEE R REH Non-audit services which covered provision

B RTE of tax compliance services 258 434

Mg Total 4,211 4,284
NEWE COMPANY SECRETARY
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Ms Mak Yee Mei is the Company Secretary and Executive Director
of the Company. As the Company Secretary, Ms Mak supports the
Board by ensuring good information flow within the Board and
the Board procedures and all applicable law, rules and regulations
are followed. During the year ended 31 March 2019, she
undertook not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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OVERVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

To manage and monitor the various risk factors which the Group
may be exposed to, the Board is responsible for establishing and
overseeing the Group's risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis, and ensuring the review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
has been properly conducted.

With delegation from the Board, the Audit Committee has already
reviewed its risk management framework and processes and
has implemented relevant measures resulting from this exercise
that aim to enhance its framework and processes. In particular,
the Group has developed, approved and implemented a risk
management system, which is supported by its approved risk
management policy. Moreover, the terms of reference of the
Audit Committee has included its responsibility for an effective
system of internal control and risk management.

Risk Governance Structure

The Group's governance structure for its risk management system
is shown in the diagram below. Each party has well defined roles
and responsibilities.

EEg
Board of Directors

ENEEE

Audit Committee

MR GHED

Internal Audit Department

RREE T EHE
Risk Management Working Group

BAEE

Department Heads
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OVERVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Risk Governance Structure (continued)

The major roles and responsibilities of each party are as follows:

Board of Directors

Is ultimately responsible for the risk management and internal
controls of the Group;

Evaluates and provide direction to the Group on the nature
and extent of the risks that shall be taken in achieving its
objectives (i.e. setting the risk appetite); and

Ensures the review of the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems is conducted at least annually.

Audit Committee

Reviews the Group's risk management framework and internal
controls with the Risk Management Working Group at least
annually, on behalf of the Board;

Reviews the results of the annual risk assessment during the
Audit Committee meeting, including the nature and extent of
significant risks and the Group's ability to respond to changes
in these risks and in its business and the external environment;

Considers the results of any investigation into the Group's risk
management framework and internal controls, as delegated
by the Board or that it performs on its own initiative, and the
management’s responses to the findings of such investigations;
and

Performs an annual review of the Internal Audit Department
including the adequacy of its budget and resources, the
qualifications and experience of its management and staff, and
the quality of its training program.

Risk Management Working Group

Assists the Board and Audit Committee in overseeing the risk
management framework;

Provides recommendations to the Board and Audit Committee
relating to the design or modification of the risk management
framework; and

Reviews the results of the annual risk assessment and submits
these to the Audit Committee for its review.
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OVERVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Risk Governance Structure (continued)
Internal Audit Department

e Acts as independent assessor of the risk management system
by performing assessments of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Group's risk management system; and

e Reports to the Audit Committee on the results of its
independent assessments.

Department Heads

e Act as risk owners and manage risks during their day-to-day
operations;

e Identify and assess risks associated with business activities
within their own departments; and

e Implement risk mitigation plans to remedy the identified risks.

Risk Assessment Methodology

The Group’s methodology for its risk assessment comprises of six
core phases, namely risk identification, risk appetite formulation,
risk assessment and measurement, formulation or update of key
risk register, risk monitoring and reporting, and disclosures. These
processes are performed at least once a year to address changes
in the Group's business environment.

Review on the Effectiveness of Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems

The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted an annual
review on the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems for the year ended 31 March 2019, covering
all material controls such as strategic, operational, financial and
regulatory controls. The Internal Audit Department had performed
independent reviews of the risk management system and had
reported the results to the Audit Committee.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, also conducted an
annual review of the Internal Audit Department, and accounting
and financial reporting functions, including the adequacy of
their budget and resources, the qualifications and experience of
management and staff, and the quality of its training program, in
order to ensure that they are able to provide sufficient coverage of
the Group’s key risk issues.
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OVERVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Our Responsibility

The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that effective
and sound risk management and internal control systems are
maintained, while the management is responsible to design and
implement an internal control system to manage risks. The Board is
also responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems.

The risk management and internal control systems can provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure in the process of attaining business
objectives. Based on the results of the annual review, the Board
is satisfied with the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems currently put in place for the Group.

Communications of Risk Events

Where risk events arise, our communications, both within the
Group and to external parties, are an integral part of the risk
management system. To enable the Group to make appropriate
decisions and responses to mitigate or address any risk events,
relevant information on the incident needs to be communicated
by and to the right functions and individuals, completely and
accurately, and in a timely manner.

To ensure inside information of the Company is to be disclosed to
the public in a timely manner in accordance with the Listing Rules,
applicable laws and regulatory requirement, written policy has
been established to set out the procedures and internal controls
for the handling and dissemination of inside information.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

The Company continues to pursue a proactive policy of promoting
investor relations and communication. Designated Executive
Directors and senior management maintain regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the
Company's developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with
in an informative and timely manner.

The Board also welcomes the views of Shareholders on matters
affecting the Group and encourages them to attend Shareholders’
meetings to communicate any concerns they might have with the
Board or management directly.

Directors had attended the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 6 September 2018 with the attendance record as
follows:

HERE
BRRE

Number of
meetings
attended/held

BITES Executive Directors

BRG(HTEE) Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman) iVal
BRAERK (7T EAB#) Chan Chee Shing (Chief Executive Officer) 1/1
S Mak Yee Mei 11
B Peggy Lee 1/1
BAFBTES Independent Non-executive Directors

RER Ng Chi Keung 1/1
PREZE Joseph Chan Kai Nin 11
2 B 4 Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 1/1
BEHRZ Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 0/1
Fi8H Peter Wan Kam To 1/1
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Procedures on how Shareholders can convene a special general
meeting, put forward proposals at Shareholders’ meetings and
propose a person for election as a director are also available at
Company’s website for Shareholders’ information.

As a channel to further promote effective communication, the
Company’s website is maintained to disseminate corporate
information and other relevant financial and non-financial
information electronically.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”)
which sets out the criteria to be adopted when considering
declaration and payment of dividend with aims to provide stable
and sustainable returns to the Shareholders.

The Board may consider declaring and paying to the Shareholders
by taking into account of the following factors, among others,
(i) financial performance; (ii) retained earnings and distributable
reserve; (iii) cash flow; (iv) debt to equity ratio; (v) working
capital requirements; (vi) capital expenditure requirements; (vii)
investment requirements; (viii) future prospects and expansion
plans; (ix) general business conditions and strategies; (x) general
economic conditions and (xi) other factors that the Board deems
relevant.

Such declaration and payment of dividends by the Company shall
remain to be determined at the sole discretion of the Board and
subject to all applicable laws of Bermuda and the Bye-laws.

The Board shall review the Dividend Policy from time to time and
shall update, amend or modify it whenever necessary.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has published an up-to-date consolidated version
of its Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. During the year ended
31 March 2019, there has been no change to these Company’s
constitutional documents.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Fairwood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Fairwood Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
("the Group”) set out on pages 60 to 170, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2019 and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code") together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in Bermuda, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.



KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
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Assessing potential impairment of property, plant and equipment
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Refer to note 10 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 88 to 90
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Local economic conditions and the level of competition
from other similar restaurants impact the performance
of the Group’s fast food restaurants. Therefore there is
a risk that the value of property, plant and equipment,
which generally comprises leasehold improvements,
equipment, air conditioning systems and cutlery and
utensils, in certain restaurants may not be recoverable in
full through the future cash flows to be generated from
the operations of those restaurants or from disposal of
the related property, plant and equipment.

Management reviews the performance of individual
restaurants at the end of each reporting period to identify
if any restaurant displays negative performance indicators
("indicators”) which could indicate impairment. Such
indicators include:

— operating losses sustained by restaurants that have
been in operation for more than a year;

— decreases in sales in a restaurant by at least 10%
compared with the prior year; or

— plans to close a restaurant.
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Our audit procedures to assess the potential impairment
of property, plant and equipment included the following:

e evaluating management'’s identification of impairment
indicators and considering whether the discounted
cash flow forecasts on a restaurant-by-restaurant
basis supported the carrying value of the relevant
assets and assessing the methodology adopted by
management in its preparation of the discounted cash
flow forecasts with reference to the requirements
of the prevailing accounting standards. We also
considered whether the management’s impairment
assessments indicated that a reversal of previously
recognised impairment was required;
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Where indicators of impairment are identified, the
value in use of the property, plant and equipment in
these restaurants is determined by management on a
restaurant-by-restaurant basis based on a discounted
cash flow analysis. Based on the assessment, the Group
recognised an impairment loss of HK$10.2 million for the
year ended 31 March 2019.

The value in use model used to assess the risk of
impairment is based on a number of assumptions,
including estimations of future revenue, food cost
inflation, rental increments, staff cost inflation and the
discount rate applied.

We identified assessing potential impairment of property,
plant and equipment as a key audit matter because of
the significance of property, plant and equipment to
the consolidated financial statements and because of
the significant management judgement and estimation
required, which can be subjective.

e comparing the actual performance and results of
the restaurants for the current year with the key
assumptions and forecasts adopted by management
in the discounted cash flow forecasts for the prior year
to assess the accuracy of management’s forecasting
process and making enquiries of management as to
the reasons for any significant variations identified
and whether these were considered in the current
year’s key assumptions and forecasts;

e critically evaluating the key assumptions and forecasts
adopted by management in its preparation of the
discounted cash flow forecasts by referring to industry
and other available third party information, recent
financial performance of the fast food operations and
management’s budgets and plans for the operations
in 2019/2020 and beyond;

e assessing the discount rate used in the cash flow
forecasts by benchmarking against other similar listed
catering groups in Hong Kong and Mainland China
and taking into consideration location and company
specific risk premiums;

e obtaining management’s sensitivity analyses of the
discount rates, future revenue, food cost inflation,
rental increments and staff cost inflation and
considering the resulting impact on the impairment
charge for the year and whether there were any
indicators of management bias;

e enquiring of the Chief Executive Officer about plans
for any restaurant closures; and

e considering the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment,
including the key assumptions and sensitivities to
changes in such assumptions, with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Sylvene Fong.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 June 2019
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FEBEFBR

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

A Revenue 3(a) 2,970,524 2,840,571
THEM A Cost of sales (2,586,321) (2,434,701)
EF Gross profit 384,203 405,870
Hapg A Other revenue 4 10,227 7,377
Hih (8 ), ZskiFE  Other net (loss)/gain 4 (835) 10,778
HEE R Selling expenses (30,063) (31,227)
1THER Administrative expenses (136,227) (133,947)
YIE - HIBIARES  Netimpairment losses on property,
. B E B 5 plant and equipment 10(d) (10,221) (8,668)
% B EHE Valuation (losses)/gain on investment
g (B1|) B properties 10(a), 10(b) (1,880) 4,850
% R R A Profit from operations 215,204 255,033
o
% B R A Finance costs 5(a) (32) (68)
li: R A E Profit before taxation 5 215,172 254,965
155 Income tax 6(a) (35,225) (38,888)
RN A RE AR R R R4S Profit for the year attributable
% REREER to equity shareholders of the
Company 179,947 216,077
SRER Earnings per share 9
A Basic 140.001llicents  169.161llicents
g Diluted 138.991llicents  167.111llicents

FOTERFEIT0EMMNEBAMEHRED—3 The notes on pages 67 to 170 form part of these financial
7o BNAARIERSBROBRENFBEHIR  statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of
BaE22(b) © the Company are set out in note 22(b).
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GEEsRAMEERKER

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

QA EER R REN Profit for the year attributable to equity
REERF shareholders of the Company 179,947 216,077
AEFEHMBEUWE Other comprehensive income for
the year:

HE gt E 78845187547  Item that may be reclassified subsequently
BEH : to profit or loss:

a5 A B P9 2t BT BB R B AY Exchange differences on translation of

B SRR A IE X =58 financial statements of subsidiaries in
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, Mainland China ~~~~~~~ (1.95) 3616
ANTEZRREEAEE Total comprehensive income for the year
2HEWN SRR attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company 177,991 219,693
FTEFE1T0EMMEBAMEHRERD —3 The notes on pages 67 to 170 form part of these financial
P © statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FEREBEE Non-current assets
KEYE Investment properties 44,150 46,030
Hip¥pE - #2EFKH  Other property, plant and equipment 468,503 493,838
RS HERFEE AR Interests in leasehold land held for
HE TR own use under operating leases 5,980 6,192
10(a) 518,633 546,060
[EES Goodwill 11 1,001 1,001
BEfNfHe%e Rental deposits paid 68,517 71,602
Hith e mEE Other financial assets 12 19,825 7,785
EETRIBEE Deferred tax assets 20(b) 44 107
608,020 626,555
REEE Current assets
a
E FE Inventories 13(a) 33,560 40,500
9 FEWBE KA E b fEUL 2L Trade and other receivables 14 102,424 87,747
£ HEmemEE Other financial assets 12 11,950 16,246
§ ] Uk o] AN HR FR TR Current tax recoverable 20(a) - 67
3 IRITF MRS N Bank deposits and cash and
g NEZEY cash equivalents 15 519,854 520,597
i 667,788 665,157
|
L et
% REAE Current liabilities
#Kg FERTER A E b EfT 3L Trade and other payables 16 385,203 430,890
= RITER Bank loan 17 143 1,720
FE AN ERFR TE Current tax payable 20(a) 10,494 10,491
A Provisions 21 23,687 11,774
... = 419527 454875
ABEERE 0 ! Netcurrentassesi e 248261 @ 2119,282]
EELERREBESE Total assets less current liabilities 856,281 836,837




FnBEE Non-current liabilities

RITER Bank loan 17 - 143
EERIBEAE Deferred tax liabilities 20(b) 19,599 24,614
B EES Rental deposits received 2,286 2,165
A Provisions 21 56,718 46,809
N /S.503 el

EEFE NET ASSETS 777,678 763,106
BEARMREE Capital and reserves 22

[N Share capital 128,650 127,793
R Reserves 649,028 635,313
ERAm TOTAL EQUITY 777,678 763,106

EEeRN_T—NFE A+ /\B&ELFHFA  Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28

i -

ERE
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
HITEE
Executive Chairman

FETEE170E WM 51 B A 75 R R &9 — 20

June 2019.

The notes on pages 67 to 170 form part of these financial

statements.

BRI B

Chan Chee Shing

Chief Executive Officer

TTBAE
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GERE2ER
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

ARARERRREG TS
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

s EXEE  BR0E RO

buildings
NIEE Share Capital Exchange  revaluation Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits
JC JT JT T T JT
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
R=ZB-—Lt#F At 1 April 2017
mA-A 127,164 7,240 3,948 285 57 576128 71529
BE-E-N\F Changes in equitK for year
=A=+-8 ended 31 March 2018:
LEENEZSE
REERF Profit for the year = = = = = 216,077 216,077
Hitzmla Other comprehensive income - - - 3,616 = = 3616
REE2HUEERE  Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 3,616 - 216,077 219,693
BRI BRTH Shaesisvedundershae
W option scheme 22(0)()) 716 14,127 = - . - 14,843
3l Issue expenses = (42) - - - _ 42)
FFEEBHERARE  Dividends approved in respect
of the previous year 22(b)i) - - - - - (138,085) (138,085)
AEEDERMEE  Dividends declared in respect
o  of the current year 22(b)(i) - - - - - (47,313) (47,313)
i PERSEE MR A Equity-settled share-based
s RHR 5 transactions 5(b), 22(c)i) - 468 928 - - 6 1,402
= EEAZRR Repurchase of own shares
B —ENFHEE — par value paid 22(c)ii) (87) = - - - _ @7)
= —BiIaEkR — premium and transaction
g RARA costs paid 22(0)i) - (2,597) - - = = (2,597)
)
2 RZB-N\F At 31 March 2018
8 =A=+-H 127,793 19,196 4,876 3,901 527 606,813 763,106
=
— R=2-N% At 1 April 2018
= mA—H 127,793 19,196 4,876 3,901 527 606,813 763,106
E‘ BE-Z-NF Changes in equity for year
N =A=+-H ended 31 March 2019:
Ir LEENERSE
4 KEEEH Profit for the year - - - - - 179,947 179,947
i‘fg Hit2EKE Other comprehensive income - - - (1,956) - - (1,956)
s REELEYEEAE  Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - (1,956) - 179,947 177,991
REWRENBEGH Sharesisued undershare
) option scheme 22()i) 1,003 19,777 - - - - 20,780
HIER Issue expenses - (48) - - - _ (48)
FEEDHANRE  Dividends approved in respect
of the previous year 22(b)(ii) - - - - - (135,208) (135,208)
AFEESRAME  Dividends declared in respect
of the current year 22(b)i) - - - - - (47,597) (47,597)
DB A E MBI & Equity-settled share-based
AT 5 transactions 5(b), 22(c)(i) - 918 1,594 - - _ 2512
BIEA &K Repurchase of own shares
—ENFEE ~ par value paid 22(c)ii) (146) - - - - - (146)
-BEER ~ premium and transaction
LB costs paid 22(c)ii) - (3,712) - - - - (3,712)
RZZ-NF At 31 March 2019
=A=t+-H 128,650 36,131 6,470 1,945 527 603,955 777,678
FOTEFENT0OEMWEBAMEMEM —E  The notes on pages 67 to 170 form part of these financial
pas statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

—TnE —T)\F
2019 2018
T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
geEn Operating activities
BR A 31 Profit before taxation 215,172 254,965
FAEER : Adjustments for:
wE Depreciation 5(c), 10(a) 105,263 98,579
ML SR E Amortisation of interests in

BRMAELH leasehold land held for own use

i under operating leases 5(c), 10(a) 212 212
ME - HENRED Net impairment losses on property,

WEEEFE plant and equipment 10(d) 10,221 8,668
FEEH Interest expense 5(a) 32 68
FISHA Interest income 4 (10,227 (7,377)
BitlRRPRE L EE Provision for long service payments

made 21(a) 7,307 1,640
RENE  HEM Net loss on disposal of property,

RENBETFE plant and equipment 4 3,300 4,665
REMEEHESE/ Valuation losses/(gain) on

(&%) investment properties 10(b) 1,880 (4,850)
PR EE MR G Equity-settled share-based payment

AEBHTN expenses 5(b) 2,512 1,402

EEESEBA Operating profit before changes in
mERA working capital 335,672 357,972
EEELMED Changes in working capital:
FERD Decrease in inventories 6,940 1,172
ERESESEN Increase in rental deposits paid (4,725) (4,299)
FEMEEFAE Increase in trade and other receivables
FEBEE M (7,261) (6,777)
FERT BRI A (Decrease)/increase in trade and other
FER ORI,/ 180 payables (7,044) 38,193
Bl sEeEMm/ Increase/(decrease) in rental deposits
OR) received 99 (48)
EHRRARE S ER Provision for long service payments
utilised 21(a) (1,141) (1,390)
BERBERALERE Provision for reinstatement costs
utilised 21(b) (1,230) (2,055)
REXBELENRS Cash generated from operations 321,310 382,768
2 UFE Interest received 10,110 7,374
BRFE Interest paid (32) (68)

B EEFER Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (40,107) (38,659)




SERERER
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

—E-NE —ZT-N\F
2019 2018
Tt Tt T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
SeTEHELMNWRETE  Net cash generated from operating
activities 291,281 351,415
REED Investing activities
BALMSREERNK Payment for purchase of other financial
assets (22,839) (14,487)
BADE - #EN Payment for purchase of property,
RERT plant and equipment (114,964) (147,722)
REME - #EN Net proceeds from disposal of property,
REERIETE plant and equipment 31 s44
Hth e R EEDIH Proceeds from maturity of other
A58 financial assets 14,635 1,132
B=1E A& I RRRT Decrease in bank deposits
x40 with more than three months to
o maturity 51,484 27,726
=
= RETHFFANESEE  Net cash used in investing activities (71,653) (132,507)
5
% MEES Financing activities
o
T
o) BBERET 21T Proceeds from shares issued under
S FTESIE share option scheme 22(0)()) 20,780 14,843
< BIIROAEENER Expenses incurred in connection with
= the issue of shares (48) (42)
g IR 3 Payment in relation to repurchase of
shares 22(c)i (3,858) (2,684)
BERRE Dividends paid (182,805) (185,398)
§ BERITER Repayment of bank loan 15(b) (1,720) (1,720)
K
RETERANESLEE  Net cash used in financing activities (167,651) (175,001)
ReNRSEEY Net increase in cash and
s cash equivalents 51,977 43,907
ROA—BHRER Cash and cash equivalents at
HeZEY 1 April 469,113 423,769
EXEENYE Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes (1,236) 1,437
R=A=1+—HWEBELH Cash and cash equivalents at 31
HeZEY March 15 519,854 469,113
BE7TEF1T0EHNNTAB AU BBREKROG —E  The notes on pages 67 to 170 form part of these financial
% © statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

1 FEEHBR

(a) 5REH

AMBRRERBELSFMAEGMHE
R PR ERECE BRI RS EL)
(tEBEmAERNENCEBR
BHEEA) (BFRGFHERDIMR
B)  FAAREGFRAUMEA(AF
FRODERERERE - AP BHKF
BEABEABEXZAARA A ([H
XA ESFEMARA( LR
BRBERE - ATRARR REW
BAR(SMEIAKEDEANIES
TR -

BREGMAGRM T ETHIIME
EFTRCERMBRELER) - FLE
AIEARBEMN ST HBERER
A HEERRA c EEAKEAREN
FE A 146 FE A IS L HT AT MR B RT /Y
ERFTSIE R AMAE S BENE
MEHRREE  ERAMBERERA
[k - BRAEFIESINHIFE(O)

(b) B R M R

HE-_T-NF=ZA=+—HILFE
MR E M mTREAKE -

BRSO B B B A STH N
BB IS R B R E S R A E A
sEER -

EEERERAENT (BB BmEE
QDM B REREFEHEH ST EED
FER - URHEE  BF - WAMX
HE PR BER T ERHE - At
FR®R - ELEEAMERRKRERE
NERRNEEERRERBRARS
EEMSEEMARMELD - B
RERBSTEEEBREBEREHEMEE
THRAMEERABNREEERME
HHETRER - BRERATEGHIR
fhETE® -

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) are
disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2019 comprise the Group.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except as
otherwise stated in the accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 EEEHBE®
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 2.

(c) Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group. Of these, the
following developments are relevant to the Group's
financial statements:

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

(i) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

(iify HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance
consideration

The Group has not applied any new standard or

interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
recognition and measurement. It sets out the
requirements for recognising and measuring financial
assets, financial liabilities and some contracts to buy or
sell non-financial items.

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes
to previous accounting policies are set out below:

a. Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities
HKFRS 9 categories financial assets into three
principal classification categories: measured
at amortised cost, at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) and at fair value
through profit or loss (FVPL). These supersede HKAS
39's categories of held-to-maturity investments,
loans and receivables, available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets measured at FVPL. The
classification of financial assets under HKFRS 9
is based on the business model under which the
financial asset is managed and its contractual cash
flow characteristics. Under HKFRS 9, derivatives
embedded in contracts where the host is a financial
asset in the scope of the standard are not separated
from the host. Instead, the hybrid instrument as a
whole is assessed for classification.

For an explanation of how the Group classifies and
measures financial assets and recognises related
gain and losses under HKFRS 9, see respective
accounting policy notes in notes 1(f), 1()(i), 1(l) and
1(p)-

09
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 EEEHBE®
(0 BFBERIIERT (8

(i) (EBUKRELERNFER [ 28
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

a. Classification of financial assets and financial

a TREENEREENS AR

(%)

B &R B EN 285 AR
A& -EEREER-F
—N\FHA-BMEESREYL
ARERPI(EBH B RS L
ANEIRNTE -

R-ZF-N\F—-A—H A&
ERBENEHMEEREHMA
BREAENMEEREAAE
BEFfEBEE & A8 -

liabilities (continued)

The measurement categories for all financial
liabilities remain the same. The carrying amounts for
all financial liabilities at 1 April 2018 have not been
impacted by the initial application of HKFRS 9.

The Group did not designate or de-designate any
financial asset or financial liability at FVPL at 1 April
2018.

b. EEERE . Credit losses
E CBEAYBRELEADEIRA HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS
= [TEHEEEE IRAUER TR 39 with the “expected credit loss” (ECL) model.
3 BT ERINEIRP M B The ECL model requires an ongoing measurement
g8 K ER - [FEHEEEE ] of credit risk associated with a financial asset and
% REERFETEHSREE therefore recognises ECLs earlier than under the
3 HENEERR  BEEER “incurred loss” accounting model in HKAS 39.
= (BB ER)EI9RTF 0B
B B IAK BT R AR
2 BESE -
&=
AEFBSHN BESHEEEIE] The Group applies the new ECL model to financial
§ BEUE RN A SH At E W assets measured at amortised cost (including cash
N S HMEE(RIEHESMRSEE and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables

) o R YRR SR EL i B WK Ko
Hib S REE) °

FRAKEHHEEBEZE
MEFHRFERE 280
1G) °

RACERBUBRELERDF N
RE AR B I AR R E K
RELBEARE -

and other financial assets).

For further details on the Group’s accounting policy
for credit losses, see note 1(j).

The adoption of HKFRS 9 does not have any material
impact on the financial position and the financial
result of the Group.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(ii) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
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HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue and some costs from contracts
with customers. HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS 18, Revenue,
which covered revenue arising from sale of goods
and rendering of services, and HKAS 11, Construction
contracts, which specified the accounting for
construction contracts.

HKFRS 15 also introduces additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to
enable users of the financial statements to understand
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue
and cash flows arising from contracts with customers.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 has no material impact on
the Group’s financial position and performance during
the relevant periods.

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes
on previous accounting policies are set out below:

a. Timing of revenue recognition
Previously, revenue arising from construction
contracts and provision of services was recognised
over time, whereas revenue form sale of goods was
generally recognised at a point in time when the
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods had
passed to the customers.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

a. Timing of revenue recognition (continued)
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Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the
customer obtains control of the promised good
or service in the contract. This may be at a single
point in time or over time. HKFRS 15 identifies
the following three situations in which control of
the promised good or service is regarded as being
transferred over time:

A. When the customers simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance, as the entity performs;

B. When the entity’s performance creates or
enhances an asset (for example work in progress)
that the customer controls as the asset is created
or enhanced;

C. When the entity’s performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the entity and
the entity has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do
not fall into any of these 3 situations, then under
HKFRS 15 the entity recognises revenue for the sale
of that good or service at a single point in time,
being when control has passed. Transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership is only one of the indicators
that is considered in determining when the transfer
of control occurs.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have any
material impact on the timing of revenue recognition
of the Group.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(ii) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

b. Significant financing component

HKFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the transaction
price for the time value of money when a contract
contains a significant financing component,
regardless of whether the payments from customers
are received significantly in advance of revenue
recognition or significantly deferred. There has been
no impact on the Group as a result of this change in

policy.

. Presentation of contract assets and liabilities

Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is recognised
only if the Group has an unconditional right to
consideration. If the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 1(t)) before being unconditionally
entitled to the consideration for the promised goods
and services in the contract, then the entitlement
to consideration is classified as a contract asset.
Similarly, a contract liability, rather than a payable,
is recognised when a customer pays non-refundable
consideration, or is contractually required to pay
non-refundable consideration and the amount is
already due, before the Group recognises the related
revenue. For a single contract with the customer,
either a net contract asset or a net contract liability
is presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets
and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are not
presented on a net basis (see note 1(0)).

As a result of the changes in presentation, the
Group has made the following classification at 1
April 2018 and 31 March 2019.

(i) “Advance receipts from coupons” in respect of
advance payments from customers amounting
to $1,943,000 as at 1 April 2018 and $3,061,000
as at 31 March 2019 are now presented as
“Contract liabilities” included in “Trade and
other payables” (see note 16).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(iiiy HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and
advance consideration
This interpretation provides guidance on determining
“the date of the transaction” for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or
part of it) arising from a transaction in which an entity
receives or pays advance consideration in a foreign
currency.

The interpretation clarifies that “the date of the
transaction” is the date on initial recognition of
the non-monetary asset or liability arising from the
payment or receipt of advance consideration. If there
are multiple payments or receipts in advance of
recognising the related item, the date of the transaction
for each payment or receipt should be determined in
this way. The adoption of HK(IFRIC) 22 does not have
any material impact on the financial position and the
financial result of the Group.

(d) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Subsidiaries (continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(j)iii)).

(e) Goodwiill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 1(j)iii)).

(f) Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group's policies for investments in debt and equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries are set out
below.

Investments in debt and equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/
sell the investment. The investments are initially stated at
fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs.
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1 FESHBE &) 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(f) HibEB R ERESREE) (f) Other investments in debt and equity securities
(continued)
ANBE=ZF—N\FNA—BEEANK (A)Policy applicable from 1 April 2018
®
BRI IR A LASMNIRE Investments other than equity investments
REEEENIFERRERN T Non-equity investments held by the Group are classified
RN into the following measurement category:
— MR BEHERENREE Y — amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
Renzs BEHNREREE collection of contractual cash flows which represent
BAE N AKENAEESREZH solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
BEIXH - AIZIRE AEHK income from the investment is calculated using the
AEtE - WEELENRARKA effective interest method (see note1(t)).
BRF R XETHE (MW=
() -
. (B) =ZE—N\FWA—BAEANBE (B) Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018
g REE K EABRAESEMEE N Dated debt securities that the Group had the positive
2 BRIHAENBEEESFED AER ability and intention to hold to maturity were classified
% ZIMES - HEDINME SRS as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity securities
S SR AT BR (2 BM () (D EFB R were stated at amortised cost (for impairment see note
3 BEREAARNSR) ° 1G)().
o
=
= (Q) REWZE (9) Investment properties
I REYEREABDNASKWAR, 5 Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
% BEKRIEEMEAXABERZRNEE owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(i)(i))
B 14 K kSR (2 BT 13)G)) © to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.
E
K
REMERDABELEK - REME Investment properties are stated at fair value. Any gain
AREEMNED  NRENEEERE or loss arising from a change in fair value or from the
MEMEENEMREKEERHEER retirement or disposal of an investment property is
HHER  c REMENHS WA R recognised in the profit or loss. Rental income from
FRBA EE1 ()i st 75 AR o investment properties is accounted for as described in note

1(0)(ii).
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When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted for
as an investment property on a property-by-property
basis. Any such property interest which has been classified
as an investment property is accounted for as if it were
held under a finance lease (see note 1(i)), and the same
accounting policies are applied to that interest as are
applied for other investment properties leased under
finance leases. Lease payments are accounted for as
described in note 1(i).

(h) Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 1(j)(iii)):

— buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land classified as held under operating leases
(see note 1(i)); and

— other items of plant and equipment, except cutlery and
utensils (see below).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the initial estimate, where relevant
of the costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

— Leasehold land and 30-50 years
buildings situated
thereon

— Leasehold improvements  The remaining term of
the tenancy leases

— Air-conditioning plant The remaining term of
the tenancy leases

— Furniture and equipment  10% — 20% per annum

— Motor vehicles 15% per annum
— Computer systems 25% per annum
— Others 10% per annum

No depreciation is provided on initial purchases of cutlery
and utensils which are capitalised. Costs of subsequent
replacements are charged to profit or loss in the year when
the expenditure is incurred.

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Leased assets (continued)

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases, with the
following exceptions:

— property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held
under a finance lease (see note 1(g)); and

— land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon at
the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being
held under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that
the lease was first entered into by the Group, or
taken over from the previous lessee.

(ii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term.
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the following item:
— financial assets measured at amortised cost

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using
the following discount rate where the effect of
discounting is material:

— fixed-rate financial assets and trade and other
receivables: effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition or an approximation thereof.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from trade and other receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 April 2018 (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)
ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date;
and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over
the expected lives of the items to which the ECL
model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group's historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk of the financial instrument since initial
recognition, in which case the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from trade and other receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 April 2018 (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

— failure to make payments of principal or interest
on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from trade and other receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 April 2018 (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)
Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant increase
in credit risk is performed on either an individual
basis or a collective basis. When the assessment
is performed on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status and credit
risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the
ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or
lease receivable is written off (either partially or in
full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect
of recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject
to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal of
impairment in profit or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from trade and other receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018

Prior to 1 April 2018, an “incurred loss” model was
used to measure impairment losses on financial
assets not classified as at FVPL (e.g. trade and other
receivables, available-for-sale investments and held-
to-maturity debt securities). Under the “incurred
loss” model, an impairment loss was recognised only
when there was objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment included:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

— asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument
below its cost.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from trade and other receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018 (continued)

If any such evidence existed, an impairment loss was
determined and recognised as follows:

For trade and other receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost,
impairment loss was measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate, where the effect of
discounting was material. This assessment
was made collectively where these financial
assets shared similar risk characteristics, such
as similar past due status, and had not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which were assessed
for impairment collectively were based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit
risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreased and the decrease
could be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss was reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss was only
recognised to the extent that it did not result
in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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When the recovery of a trade debtor or other
financial assets carried at amortised cost was
considered doubtful but not remote, associated
impairment losses were recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group was satisfied
that recovery was remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable was written off against the gross
carrying amount of those assets directly. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account were reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly were recognised in
profit or loss.

(ii) Credit losses from financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees issued are initially recognised
within “trade and other payables” at fair value,
which is determined by reference to fees charged in
an arm’s length transaction for similar services, when
such information is obtainable, or to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged
by lenders when the guarantee is made available with
the estimated rates that lenders would have charged,
had the guarantees not been available, where reliable
estimates of such information can be made. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the issuance
of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss.
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The Group monitors the risk that the specified
debtor will default on the contract and recognises a
provision when ECLs on the financial guarantees are
determined to be higher than the amount carried
in “trade and other payables” in respect of the
guarantees (i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation).

To determine ECLs, the Group considers changes
in the risk of default of the specified debtor since
the issuance of the guarantee. A 12-month ECL is
measured unless the risk that the specified debtor
will default has increased significantly since the
guarantee is issued, in which case a lifetime ECL is
measured. The same definition of default and the
same assessment of significant increase in credit risk
as described in note 1(j) apply.

As the Group is required to make payments only
in the event of a default by the specified debtor in
accordance with the terms of the instrument that
is guaranteed, an ECL is estimated based on the
expected payments to reimburse the holder for a
credit loss that it incurs less any amount that the
Group expects to receive from the holder of the
guarantee, the specified debtor or any other party.
The amount is then discounted using the current
risk-free rate adjusted for risks specific to the cash
flows.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Credit losses from financial guarantees issued
(continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018

Prior to 1 April 2018, a provision would be
recognised if and when it became probable that (i)
the holder of the guarantee would call upon the
Group under the guarantee and (ii) the amount of
the claim on the Group was expected to exceed the
amount carried in “trade and other payables” in
respect of the guarantee.

(iii)lmpairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

other property, plant and equipment;

interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases;

goodwill; and

investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(iii)Impairment of other non-current assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
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not there is any indication of impairment.

— Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

— Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value
in use (if determinable).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(iii)iImpairment of other non-current assets (continued)
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— Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

(iv)Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance with
HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the
first six months of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at
the end of the financial year (see note 1(j)iii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Inventories

()

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary
course of business, in the process of production for such
sale or in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed
in the production process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average cost formula and comprises all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount
is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note 1

(D).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note 1(v)).

(n) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 1(j)ii), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

(o) Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 1(t)). A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised (see note 1(1)).

For a single contract with the customer, a net contract
liability is presented. For multiple contracts, contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net
basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest accrued
under the effective interest method (see note 1(v)).

(p) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL
in accordance with the policy in note 1(j)(i).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(q) Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to

defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

(ii) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at the grant date using the trinomial lattice
model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On the vesting date,
the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of share options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company's shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium account)
or the option expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits).
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1 FESHBE &) 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(r) Fri5%i (r) Income tax
REFEREHRBIESHHIBEBNELER Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
BEEHABENES - EHHIBEBNE movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
ENBEEREBENEHHEBZEP tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
R BENREEHMEERERE recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
EEERTEANEEIEER - BIEH relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income
Mo EEMEA RGN EE AR or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts
P RERR o of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.

EHIR B SR ANEEEBRSE - B Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
EREHARACRITHEE LEHITH income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
MEFENTBHREMNBIIE - LT substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
FRENHIEN AR - and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.
REFHIBEEEEGED 5B HE A Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
a EHERSUEZREL ERUEEER and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
% EEEHBBEENERR INERS differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
5 HREEEEHAENHREARNE liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
= B o EERIELELI MAREER bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
o EAHE BRI A B R R A A A - and unused tax credits.
o
(@}
% BT HEEBRMGIIME RN - FTEIE Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
< ERIEEBENRENEEE(ERNE liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
= Al BE1S AR FB 2RI 0 R 2R a] gL ER 1S A it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
& JERHR A AE D )19 F ARER o XiHHE against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
REAAMEINEREZEMELENEL Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
#Kg B IE & B B AR R E R R A B 45 H E o of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
ﬁ BRIFAENERETRE=ZEMELN differences include those that will arise from the reversal
S BELEEnERMAERR— of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
RAEREARF —ERERER WA differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
HER TR =2t E O same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
A R g RERIBEENS|I A the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
30 &5 18 A [A) 18 HA 5k [m) A HA 45 = A9 BB temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
EEiM AL - £/ TE B BITFENE arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
MERUZERLTEAXS®RAR forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
% {58 F &Y BT 4 0 25 T8 & 1R AN B BUR whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
FrEARNEEHBELERNERAR— recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
EH IR EREME=ERER K losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
WEMRE-EHEREGRH  YARE account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
&% #h) {57 B O] $ H0 A 18 BT 38 RN B FOR the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
K EEE o period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r) Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
1(g), the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
using the tax rates that would apply on sale of those
assets at their carrying value at the reporting date unless
the property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the property over time,
rather than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of
deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(r) Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(t

~

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use
by others of the Group's assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group's business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has
the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.
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1 FESHEEK &) 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(t) WA R EMUWES (&) (t) Revenue and other income (continued)
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Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Revenue arising from the sale of food and beverages
is recognised in profit or loss at the point of sale to
customers. Revenue is after deduction of any sale
discounts.

(i) Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are earned.

(iii) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(iv) Other income is recognised in profit or loss on an
accrual basis.

(u) Translation of foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Company and subsidiaries
which operate in Hong Kong is Hong Kong dollars while
that for subsidiaries which operate in Mainland China is
Renminbi. The presentation currency of the Group is Hong
Kong dollars.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u) Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the
Company initially recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions. Statement of financial position
items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of operations outside Hong Kong, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences relating to
that operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

(v) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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1 FESHBE &) 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(w)EBEE TS (w) Related parties
(M WBBATAL - BIZATHZAT (1) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
KA R A EE KRR related to the Group if that person:
() 1k HEZESIARER (i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) HEAEBBEEATE =% (i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) EAREBEE A LB QAN (iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of
REBAE - the Group or the Group’s parent.
(2) t7EE THEREHE - Bl EE (2) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
EREEBEH T conditions applies:
() ZEROAXEERBR %5 () The entity and the Group are members of the same
(AESHRFE - [WBRRFRR group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
BB A B It A R RS ) o and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).
a
§ (i) " RERES—EBHBLEA (i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
2 ARG ERE (IS —ERBME other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
g SEETHKERAMEZ QA member of a group of which the other entity is a
) HEEDE) - member).
o
(@}
% (I MREBER—F=A0N&% (iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
g - party.
E‘
& (v " REBRF=-ZTEENLE (iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
Tt ME—EBERBRE=FE other entity is an associate of the third entity.
" BEBAAT -
%
K
v) ZEBERBRAANEESIEALRE (v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
E@Em TN EENEER the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
MR A BE R R BN ET & - entity related to the Group.
(Vi) ZEBXB LM FE(NBERMR (vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
TEATIE Rk LR o person identified in (1).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w) Related parties (continued)

(2) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)

(vi)A person identified in (1)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

(x) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of products and services, the nature of
production processes, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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2 &&tAIER Lt 2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
MEE1I 2385 AR BB ENSR T Notes 11 and 23 contain information about the assumptions
ARREMEREZNER - HibEZER and their risk factors relating to goodwill impairment and
HEtEEI S ERZELT ¢ financial instruments. Other key sources of estimation

uncertainty are as follows:

(a) W3 ~ HEENRBERIE (a) Impairment of property, plant and equipment
N B 7 5 E =S B R E B M Ep A0 o Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
REEE AT EYE - EaEZAR at the end of each reporting period to assess whether there
EABEMBREDRR - iR EIREM is any indication that property, plant and equipment may
EEDR FoMirwE - EENK be impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
BRI EHEE - EEMIBRAE D amount of the property, plant and equipment is estimated.
A eERHEEERBETRN L Changes in facts and circumstances may result in revisions
AN AT Y B B EHE R BR] - & to the conclusion of whether an indication of impairment
BRRFEMNRFIHNEE - exists and revised estimates of recoverable amounts, which

would affect profit or loss in future years.

(b)ITEE (b) Depreciation
o Wz MBENEZE(TBEIXEAR Property, plant and equipment other than cutlery and
= B RAEKEIZTET I AERTE utensils are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
g e  ASsEgrHERNEENTET estimated useful lives of the assets. The Group reviews
5 AR EARR - DA TE B RC AME(AT ¥R 5 5 the estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in order
g MM E HHE - ATAMRBAS to determine the amount of depreciation expense to be
§ EREFERBEENLERET - W0 recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives are
é BEBESBEIATO M EEEBEE based on the Group’s historical experience with similar
& B EEREBARKBEAOTESL L - assets. The depreciation expense for future periods is
% adjusted if there are material changes from previous
& estimates.
i () REMEMGE (c) Valuation of investment properties
R EMtsE10(b)pritt - I EMERIRR As described in note 10(b), the investment properties are
B EEGEMTRETHGKE I stated at fair value based on the valuation performed by
ZEINHEWANFEUALRMET S E an independent firm of professional surveyors after taking
EHSEtmEARBETRK - into consideration the net rental income allowing for

reversionary income potential.

REEAABER  HEMADKREES In determining the fair value, the surveyors have based
SETHEINMBEREZET  EFE on a method of valuation which involves market price of
RALRGHNTE BERXFNETF comparable transactions, building quality and timing of the
G2 R - NMEBHERSH & reference transactions. In relying on the valuation report,
BED/EE T HETRRZEESE the management has exercised their judgement and is
RELTHISIRN - (M2 ETMHEL B4 satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective of the
24t - RIIREMETSERSRE - current market condition. Should changes be made to the

market inputs, the corresponding investment valuations
would change.
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2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

(d) Hong Kong Profits Tax and PRC taxes

The Group is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax and the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") taxes. Judgement is
required in determining the provision for such taxes. There
are transactions during the ordinary course of business,
for which calculation of the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. Where the final tax outcome is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the tax provisions in the year in which such
determination is made.

Recognition of deferred tax assets depends on the
management’s expectation of future taxable profit that will
be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
The outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.

(e) Provision for long service payments

(f

~-

As explained in note 21(a), the Group makes provision for
long service payments in accordance with the requirement
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The Group has
based the estimation on its recent employees’ statistics and
adopted certain assumptions in assessing the provision for
long service payments. It is possible that these assumptions
adopted by the Group in assessing the provision for long
service payments may not be indicative of the future
situation. Any increase or decrease in the provision would
affect profit or loss in future years.

Provision for reinstatement costs

As explained in note 21(b), the Group makes provision
for reinstatement costs based on the best estimate of the
expected costs to be incurred upon expiry of the respective
rental agreements, which are subject to uncertainty and
might differ from the actual costs incurred. Any increase
or decrease in the provision would affect profit or loss in
future years.
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3 RARSEEE 3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(a) LA (a) Revenue
AREBNTEEKEKLESREEMY The principal activities of the Group are operation of
ERE - WABEETFTERTR MM fast food restaurants and property investments. Revenue
mEEEBEEMES KA @ TERIEE represents the sales value of food and beverages sold to
BERKHEMEER - W2 HREME customers and rental income and excludes value added
T WARDITAT - tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade

discounts. An analysis of revenue is as follows:

BmkmiseE Sale of food and beverages 2,962,885 2,833,144
WEES Property rental 7,639 7,427
2,970,524 2,840,571
=
% EAREEFZXBNE - FTHBER Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities are
@ FEWR ¢ disclosed below:
g (b) 7 B E (b) Segment reporting
8 AEEFERMESF(ANEBEERF The Group manages its businesses by two divisions, namely
% Bl B EE) REIBER - WikRME Hong Kong restaurants and Mainland China restaurants,
- BAxEPEMES I - AEEEH#E which are organised by geographical location. In a
g TUATMERSEDE - BAZ2®|A X manner consistent with the way in which information is
T HAFESESETHREEAERAE reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
BEPERSER (UEREETERS R management for the purposes of resource allocation and
§ RERRAE)OAFX - - XEEERE performance assessment, the Group has identified the
X F BAKAT@EDEMEITE O following two reportable segments. No operating segments
FTEMEESE - have been aggregated to form the following reportable
segments.

— BABEE  GEAPEEBLEER - Hong Kong restaurants: this segment operates
EE o restaurants in Hong Kong.

— PEAMERE - ESESHEFERA - Mainland China restaurants: this segment operates
A LR - restaurants in Mainland China.

H o BEENENFERERED Other segments generate profits mainly from leasing of

¥HE VEBRERAAIEA- investment properties and include corporate expenses.
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i) Segment results

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s
most senior executive management monitors the results
of each reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by those
segments and expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

Performance is measured based on segment profit
before taxation. Items not specifically attributable to
individual segments are not allocated to the reportable
segments.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
segment profit, management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue (including inter-
segment revenue) and cost of sales (including food
cost, labour cost, rent and rates and depreciation). The
inter-segment transactions were conducted on normal
commercial terms and were priced with reference to
prevailing market prices and in the ordinary course of
business.

Segment assets information is not reported to or used
by the Group’s most senior executive management.

105



B 75 ¥R 2R MY

Notes to the Financial Statements

3 WARSEEE 2 3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) D ERLRE (48) (b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i) DEPEE(E) (i) Segment results (continued)
HEZZ-NEFRZE-N\F=A Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments
=+—HIEEE  A&EEHERETT as provided to the Group’s most senior executive
BREBABRSEBAEERE D management for the purposes of resource allocation
BB R (AR EETE RS B & and assessment of segment performance for the years
DERIFILE) @ HBEOT © ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 is set out below.

B B
Hong Kong Mainland China
restaurants restaurants Other segments Total

E _Z-hE “Z-\E _3-)F NE ZE-hE ZE-)\F
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

, T T T T T T
§000 $'000 §000 §/000 §/000 §'000 §000

TANIZEMMA  Revenue from external

o customers 2839910 2,702,855 122975 130,289 7,639 7427 2970524 2,840,571
= TEEMAPEAWA  Inter-segment revenue - - - - 4,938 4793 4,938 4793
g BEDHMA Reportable segment revenue 2839910 2,702,855 122975 130,289 12577 12,220 2975462 2,845,364
a

g BEABEA Reportable segment profit 207,767 240974 6,994 8,987 12512 882 227273 258783
g FEMA Interest income 10,173 7323 54 54 - - 10227 71377
;:: BIERRSER  Interest expense on bank loan 3 68 - - - - Yl 68
&

MENZ S Depreciation and amortisation 100,566 93,424 3,987 4,503 922 84 105475 98791
% M EEMRED  Impairment losses on property,

K HEEE plant and equipment 9517 11,160 704 = - - 1021 1160

BEYE  ERREHN Reversal of impairment losses
HERE on property, plant and
equipment - 2,49 - - - - - 2492




3 INARSBEE (2)
(b) 7 EBIRE (4)

(i) F|ED BT HE AR

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment profit

Y Al Profit
R B AR 5 90 5604 F Reportable segment profit before
taxation 227,273 258,783

EWEMGE(EE),  Valuation (losses)/gain on investment

AR properties (1,880) 4,850
M - HERMERER Net impairment losses on property, plant

DERIE iD=k and equipment (10,221) (8,668)
RA B RS Consolidated profit before taxation 215,172 254,965

(il) HEEHR

(i) Geographic information

TRIILBRADAEEREIMNEE
PERA : ARG EBHIREY
X MBAERE  UEEHERE
BERMEE RS REHE(ETE
FRBEE]NMEBER - TP
BT R IR R AR HRE L ER
HHER S| ) o MBRYIE - H2R
wE - HEFRRBDEENAEMZ
BRZEENERMEBE D a0
BREE  EEFRDEEMNME
AR E T D ECE Y 2 E 2 &

7 e

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from
external customers and (ii) the Group’s investment
properties, other property, plant and equipment,
interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases, and goodwill (“specified non-current
assets”). The geographical location of customers is
based on the location at which the services were
provided or the goods delivered. The geographical
location of the specified non-current assets is based
on the physical location of the assets in the case of
property, plant and equipment, and the location of the
operation to which they are allocated in the case of
goodwill.

REIDEFEMA BEERBEE

Revenue from external customers  Specified non-current assets
“ENE —T-N\F “TNE —T-N\F
2019 2018 2019 2018
T T Fr Fr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
&8 (GEf) Hong Kong (place of domicile) 2,843,528 2,706,274 444,539 466,386
HEIA Mainland China 126,996 134,297 75,095 80,175
2,970,524 2,840,571 519,634 547,061
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4 HthgA(EE) R RH 4 OTHER REVENUE AND NET (LOSS)/GAIN

Hug A Other revenue
FEWA Interest income 10,227 7,377
Hit(558), BEERE Other net (loss)/gain
BREVE - HESMREN Net loss on disposal of property,
b plant and equipment (3,300) (4,665)
BN (EE) Bt FE Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain (5,413) 8,429
BELRBEES Electric and gas range incentives 4,073 3,839
B QIR F Profit on sale of redemption gifts 1,148 1,047
- Hit Others 2,657 2,128
s
2 (835) 10,778
6
=
5
o
T
o
(@}
(@]
z
g
=
2
&=
T
4k
"
&£
K




5 FRRAEF
BBIATERE R (GEA) -

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(a) BEMA

(a) Finance costs

RITERFSER Interest expense on bank loan 32 68
(b) BT RiA (b) Staff costs
REHFRIRFT B Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan 42,727 40,128
DAz B Y DARR 19 A Equity-settled share-based payment
A expenses 2,512 1,402
e IEREMERM Salaries, wages and other benefits 918,003 863,175
963,242 904,705
(c) HtyEH (c) Other items
FEKA (M) Cost of inventories (note) 696,610 679,785
e Depreciation 105,263 98,579
LR EREB RN Amortisation of interests in leasehold land
T3 A8 SR R B held for own use under operating leases 212 212
ZERE & Auditor’s remuneration
—ZERHB — Audit services 3,953 3,850
— TR — Tax services 197 175
—H iR — Other services 61 259
MENKEHEER Operating lease charges on properties
—HERENTE — Minimum lease payments 465,155 422,852
—gAHE - Contingent rentals 9,282 10,942
EEE Rental receivable
—REVMFEREES L — Investment properties, less
20,0007C(ZZE—N\&F - direct outgoings of $20,000
28,0007%) (2018: $28,000) (4,001) (3,980)
—Hirgg HAHE — Other operating sub-leases (3,618) (3,419)
HEFBRIXEAR Cost of subsequent replacement of cutlery
BRMOER and utensils 10,732 10,938

M FERARERBKA

Note: The cost of inventories represents food costs.
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6 IREBERMTHMER 6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss represents:

() FEBERRIRIES !

REBE - BARFEB

Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax

ISR Provision for the year 40,177 39,713
IEERIE (FT5E20(b)) Deferred tax (note 20(b))
TR ERNELEMNED Origination and reversal of temporary
differences (4,952) (825)
e 35,225 38,888
S
% —N\FE=H  BABEEM(=F In March 2018, the Hong Kong Government introduced a
S —/\ﬁfﬁﬁ%(f A1) (B35 ) &I ) ([ 15 two-tiered profits tax rate regime by enacting the Inland
3 Bl])  BEHEMNEHMASG - BRIEFSF Revenue (Amendment) (No. 3) Ordinance 2018 (the
g PR RS - & B A E A ER & T "Ordinance”). Under the two-tiered profits tax rate regime,
= W E2008 T XK 58.25%  MHFIT the first $2 million of assessable profits of qualifying
® BB RR B s M B R /516.5% ° #& Ik corporations is taxed at 8.25% and the remaining
= PlE=—F—N /- ARBFERL assessable profits at 16.5%. The Ordinance is effective
R o from the year of assessment 2018/2019.
4
#a
g Bt #Ez=Z—NF=ZA=+—H Accordingly, the provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for
LEFERNBBENEGREBDRENS the year ended 31 March 2019 is calculated in accordance
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BRAHFTE(ZT—N\F - ZKAE—
% 16.5%) °

HRAEBETBEAMERE_FT -
BREWHBER  QHYER_FT—NF
TECEMEHRER  BRAE
BHRBENSEFEREFEELNR
SIS R 1R AT I S SRR B A
WA ER T N\FHEEEMREH
AHEEE o

with the two-tiered profits tax regime (2018: a single tax
rate of 16.5% was applied).

No provision has been made for PRC corporate income
tax for 2019 as the Group’s Mainland China operations
sustained a loss for taxation purpose. No provision has
been made for PRC corporate income tax for 2018 as the
Group’s Mainland China operations have accumulated
tax losses brought forward from prior years to offset the
estimated assessable profits.



6 IREBERFATHMER2) 6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(b) B IE X M FHa R &8 BB =5t (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
ERER ¢ profit at applicable tax rates:

R 2 AR A Profit before taxation 215,172 254,965
HRAMEFRMAF (=Z—/)\ Notional Hong Kong Profits Tax

F :16.5%)TEHNER calculated at two-tiered profit tax

EEF|ER regime (2018: 16.5%) 35,338 42,069
ER—HWEERZEHHE Effect of different tax rate of a subsidiary

NEEEA TR R 2 operating in another tax jurisdiction 438 148
AR H R E & Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 1,548 881
DA HBRANTRET & Tax effect of non-taxable income (2,513) (4,227)
REAMEARMERNAIEI  Tax effect of unused tax losses not

BlENREZE recognised 380 _
BB 2 BT R MR AR Tax effect of previously unrecognised

BIEESENES e tax losses utilised this year - (17)
AERNEMEREEDN Tax effect of other temporary

HETE differences not recognised 34 34
BRHEYH Actual tax expense 35,225 38,888
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7 EEM: 7 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS
RIEEBCA BMER) Y E 383(1)IEFIC A A Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)
(BRRESHZER)BROIDE2E5| A E of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
EMemT - Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

(BitsE)
Salaries
allowances Retirement
and benefits  Discretionary ~ Share-based scheme
Directors' fee in kind bonus payments  contributions
(note)
T Tr it Tr Fr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
HITES Executive Directors
o ERGLE Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 170 6,520 4,555 - 18 11,263
s BSR4 Mr Chan Chee Shing 150 2,620 3,535 126 18 6,449
b REME Ms Mak Yee Mei 150 2,110 1,178 n 18 3528
2 FEFME MsPeggylee 150 1922 707 51 18 2,848
= i Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis
= (R=Z-N%E  (appointed on
8 —A—H 1 January 2019)
z BEA) 38 936 279 63 18 1,33
% BUkHTES  Independent Non-
% executive Directors
% RERTE Mr Ng Chi Keung 80 - - - - 80
= BEERE Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin 90 - - - - 90

[ 1

[ 1
il n Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 1 1
ERFAE Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 170 - - - . 170
FRELE Mr Peter Wan Kam To 2 )

1,608 14,108 10,254 312 %0 26,372
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7 EEMe 2 7 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

PR &
AROA RGBT
()
Salaries
allowances Retirement
and benefits  Discretionary ~ Share-based scheme
Directors' fee in kind bonus payments  contributions
(note)
S T e T i
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
HITES Executive Directors
BRELE Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 170 6,473 5,401 = 18 12,062
BREMEE Mr Chan Chee Shing 150 2,519 4,050 176 18 6,913
EathA Ms Mak Yee Mei 150 2,028 1,350 100 18 3,646
FEHMA Ms Peggy Lee 38 1,848 470 69 18 2,443

BIFHTEE  Independent Non-
executive Directors

REREE Mr Ng Chi Keung 180 - - - = 180
REERE Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin 190 - - - - 190
FEEEt Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 170 - - - = 170
ERERE Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 170 - - - - 170
FRERLE Mr Peter Wan Kam To 240 - - - - 240
1,458 12,868 11,271 345 72 26,014
MisE : RDAEROSNREREBERNARAE Note: Share-based payments represent the estimated value of share
BREFEIRTEFBERENGEER B options granted to the Directors under the Company's share
L i R A 69 125 (B 2 4R BB BN 5 1(q) (i) T & 51 option scheme. The value of these share options is measured
REEARD SERH RN ZHGFE according to the Group’s accounting policies for share-based
REtE - WIRBZIBEEGK - B8 EESEE payment transactions as set out in note 1(g)(ii) and, in accordance
AR AR MR TR R TARENT with that policy, includes adjustments to reverse amounts accrued
FRERFNELIHEEHAAE - in previous years where grants of equity instruments are forfeited
prior to vesting.
ERELEYRROFE  BEARTE Details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and
RIENFZEFMNEBE  BREEGHRSE number of options granted, are disclosed under the paragraph
BT 8 | —ERFNPHRE 19 - “Share Option Scheme” in the Report of the Directors and note

19.
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8 EEM&AL 8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
ERAUMEZRamMALTH OU(=ZF Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four (2018:
—N\F N AEE  BEENMEFS four individuals) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed
BN E7 c B —(ZZT—)\F: — in note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the
N)ANTHBES @FEMT ¢ other one individual (2018: one individual) are as follows:

FohHEMEe Salaries and other emoluments 1,534 1,489
LARRAD B ERER Share-based payments 126 20
RUNGHEI R Retirement scheme contributions 18 18
1,678 1,527
—I(ZE—N\F: —f)HEERESALTH The emoluments of one individual (2018: one individual) with
MEEATEHER : the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

—E-NF
2019

N
Number of
individuals

1,500,0017c—2,000,000;t  $1,500,001 - $2,000,000 1

—E—N\F
2018
ANEX
Number of
individuals




9 HRERT
(a) BIRESEF

BREARFEEBRAFENAQA
T AR 2= IR R B (G F1179,947,000
T (=ZZF — J\HF : 216,077,000
JC) AR B BT E BRI F
5 £0128,538,000 % ( =& — J\ % :
127,735,0000) 5t & 0T -

EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
the Company of $179,947,000 (2018: $216,077,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
128,538,000 shares (2018: 127,735,000 shares) in issue
during the year, calculated as follows:

SRR hNAE S 8 Weighted average number of ordinary shares:

—=-hE B N\F

AONE) 2018

fixfh & B R1DEE

Number Number

of shares of shares

TFhx Fix

‘000 ‘000

RO A—BMEETE @R Issued ordinary shares at 1 April 127,793 127,164
TEREREN R Effect of share options exercised 797 583
EIERNHNTE Effect of shares repurchased (52) (12)

RZA=+—HMLER Weighted average number of
hniEF9 8 ordinary shares at 31 March 128,538 127,735




B 75 ¥R 2R MY

Notes to the Financial Statements

9 BB &) 9 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
(b) BREEEF (b) Diluted earnings per share
TR ER N ZIRBAN T LR RE The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
= IR E(L 5 ) 179,947,000T (=& the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
—/\% : 216,077,0007T) * A RSt & the Company of $179,947,000 (2018: $216,077,000)
B A AN F 19 80129,467,000/% (= and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
ZT— A\ :129,301,0000%)sT&m T : 129,467,000 shares (2018: 129,301,000 shares), calculated
as follows:
TRIRE IS E(EE) - Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted):
—ET-NF —E-N\F
2019 AONES]
SvE 4 ih 8B
Number Number
of shares of shares
TR TH%
‘000 ‘000
a
= FERTE BIREA R BT Weighted average number of ordinary
§ L@ N a8 shares used in calculating basic
9 earnings per share 128,538 127,735
E AR ARBEARA TN Effect of deemed issue of ordinary shares
g RN REST BT ETE R under the Company’s share option
= RITEBROTE scheme for nil consideration 929 1,566
=
g st E SRS &2 TR Weighted average number of ordinary
= @RI 8 shares used in calculating diluted
Eg earnings per share 129,467 129,301
4
#a
®
K
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10INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,

fEREELH PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD LAND
(a) (a)
BEDMN  RENZ
e IRIE REnE RELHER
INEET
leasehold
[and held
for own
Leasehold use under
land and Leasehold Other Investment operating
buildings  improvements assets properties leases
T T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 §'000 §'000
HASE : Cost or valuation:
RZE—HEMA—A A1 Al 2017 98,457 329,503 621878 1,049,338 41,180 8098 1,099,116
A" Exchange adjustments 693 2,395 2,925 6,018 = = 6,018
BE Additions - 64,016 86,945 150,961 - - 150,961
k= Disposals - (28311) (28,842) (57,153) - - (57,153)
EfEBH(ME100))  Gainon revaluation (note 10(o)) = - = = 4,850 = 4,850
RZB-N\%F At 31 March 2018
=A=t-H 99,155 367,603 682,906 1,149,664 46,030 8098 1203792
ik Representing:
A Cost 99,155 367,603 682,906 1,149,664 - 8098 1,157,762
{fE-ZF-N\E  Valuation-2018 - - - - 46,030 - 46,030
99,155 367,603 682,906 1,149,664 46,030 8098 1203792
ZiE HBR  Accumulated depreciation,
BE amortisation and
impairment:
RZE—+EWA-R A1 April 2017 49,663 202,262 344198 596,123 - 1,694 597,817
fE A Exchange adjustments 668 1,719 1713 4,100 = = 4,100
EENE Charge for the year 2,264 4202 54,113 98,579 - M 98,791
EEB(K10()  Impaiment losses (note 10(d) - 8497 2,663 11,160 - - 11,160
REGRED Reversal of impairment losses
(BsE10(a) (note 10(d) - (204) (2,288) (2,492) - - (2,492)
HEREE Written back on disposal - (28,227) 23417) (51,644) - - (51,644)
RZE-N\F At 31 March 2018
=f=1-H 52,595 226,49 376,982 655,826 - 1,906 657,732
BERE: Net book value:
RZE-\F At 31 March 2018
=A=t-H 46,560 141,354 305,924 493,838 46,030 6,192 546,060
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10RETHE - Hthr B335 10INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,

ERESLH =) PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD LAND
(continued)
(@)(#&) (a)(continued)

RETHER
Interests in
leasehold
land held
for own
Leasehold Use under
land and Leasehold Other Investment operating
buildings  improvements assets Sub-total properties leases
T T T T T T
§000 §/000 §000 §000 §000 §000
BATE Cost or valuation:
A RZZ-NERA-8 At1Apil2018 99,155 367,603 682,906 1,149,664 46,030 8,098 1,203,792
= L Exchange adjustments (458) (183) (2,130 (4.426) - - (4.426)
= #E Additions - 40,75 54,267 95,023 - - 95,023
2 HE Disposals - (20,790) (28231) (49,021) - - 49,021)
= EBRKEI0b)  Loss on revaluation (note 10(b) - - - - (1,880) - (1,880)
o
5 RZE-NE At31 March 2019
) ZA=t-A 98,697 385,731 706,812 1,191,240 44150 8,098 1,243488
= e
s fi%: Representing;
E A Cost 98,697 385,731 706,812 1,191,240 - 8,098 1,199,338
& HE-T21E  Vaaton-2019 - - ; S um D
Jﬁ 98,697 385,731 706,812 1,191,240 44,150 8,098 1,243,488
®
s ZiAE B#E  Accumulated depreciation,
HE: amortisation and
impairment:
RZE-\EMA-H At1Apil 2018 52,595 226,49 376,982 655,826 - 1,906 657,732
i35S Exchange adjustments (439) (1.270) (1.174) (2883) - - (2883
EEiE Charge for the year 2,261 46,207 56,795 105,263 - m 105,475
FESEKE0)  Impairment losses (note 10(d) - 5,202 5,019 10,221 - - 10221
HERER Written back on disposal - (20,698) (24992) (45,690) - - (45,690)
RIZ-NF At 31 March 2019
=Zf=1-H 54417 255,690 412,630 mnii - 2118 724,855
REFE: Net book value:
RIZ-NF At 31 March 2019
=ZA=1-H 44280 130,041 294182 468,503 44150 5980 518633
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RRkERLM 2)

(a) (&)

AEBYRRARGENDNTOT

(continued)

(a) (continued)

Group is as follows:

10INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD LAND

The analysis of cost or valuation of the properties of the

HE T AMBEY (RRAK) Leasehold land and buildings, at cost
ERANTEREE Medium-term leasehold in Hong Kong 71,090 71,090
ERBRIINPHAEE Medium-term leasehold outside Hong Kong 27,607 28,065
98,697 99,155

BEYE(RMHE) Investment properties, at valuation
EREBRIMPEEE Medium-term leasehold outside Hong Kong 44,150 46,030
DEEHEREBRN Interests in leasehold land held for own

HE LR (RRAE) use under operating leases, at cost
EEBHHEEE Medium-term leasehold in Hong Kong 8,098 8,098
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108 TDE  Ht¥ - BREME 10INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,

fEREBLTH 2 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD LAND
(continued)
(b)MEN R AEBEE (b) Fair value measurement of properties
(i) PREERER (i) Fair value hierarchy

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

RREEBERDR
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AEERNBEHRREEREEGE
BRENMENAAEE - ZFWED
BACE BB REER)DFE 135 -
(24 EEFEIMRAEN=ARA
BEER AKE2RUATHES
ARG A BN BRIZEM
EEE KMEEQAEBEFER
BEFfERBRER

- FEAMGBE: RERE—E
R ANE(BHEREELEER
FHE HHEE BT ISR R K
BRE)RFERAEE -

- F_ERME: ERAE_EBR
BWAERESE - EBRNAE
KRPAE)  LHRBERTAH
RBAERFEAAREER T
AERBAEIERRTIZH
IEHBAE ©

— E=ERMGE RAEATRT
BEE AERHEAABE -

FERENEER T NAFM=
E-N\E=ZA=1+—BETEMR -
EfMTIERBIREMERMA—F
HWEBEMERERABET - %A
EMTHETHARTEEER -
B EHIREY R PTE R AR
MEABRBENER AKEEEE
B A8 AR E BIRETH
BENRRMER -

RZEBE-NAFEN_ZT-N\F=A
=t—8 AEEMEREMEY
NEROE="ABEERAE -

The fair value of the Group's investment properties
measured at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis are categorised into the three-level
fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair
value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the inputs used
in the valuation technique as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputsi.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available.

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

All investment properties were revalued at 31 March
2019 and 2018 by an independent firm of surveyors,
Asset Appraisal Limited, who has staff with recognised
professional qualifications and relevant experience in the
location and category of investment properties being
revalued. The Group’s management has discussion
with the surveyors on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results when the valuation is performed at the
end of the reporting period.

At 31 March 2019 and 2018, all of the Group’s
investment properties fall into Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy as described above.
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RRkERLM 2)

(b) MIZEN A REBETE(E)
(i) F=BRLIABETENER

10INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD LAND
(continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)

(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

ES s Tt B Al PRIEREE AR
Location of properties Valuation techniques Unobservable input
B A3 BELEBE BREMNEBATTRN (10)% to 10%
—EEME (#7:&),%(E (ZZ—N\F: (10)% to 0%)
Mainland China Direct comparison  (Discount)/premium on (10)% to 10%
— Commercial properties approach quality of the buildings (2018: (10)% to 0%)
URFBEAHRENEN AR E The fair values of investment properties located

B RERERLBOAERE  EF
E2EALMENTE  WiKSE
REGNEFTESNMEEIELHAE -
REVEZTERREE  a/ER
SRR EEREBUE

Zi‘tb1iEAEP@Wi1EE’\JTQ’§%¥E’$¢

in Mainland China are determined by using direct
comparison approach with reference to the market
price of comparable properties and adjusted for building
quality and timing of the reference transactions. Higher
premium for investment properties will result in a higher
fair value measurement.

The movement of these investment properties in
Mainland China during the year is as follows:

T
$'000

RZE—+FWMA—H At 1 April 2017 41,180
HERER Valuation gain 4,850
RZE—NF=ZA=+—H At 31 March 2018 46,030
RZZE—NFHEA—H At 1 April 2018 46,030
HEEE Valuation losses (1,880)
RZE—hF=ZA=+—8H At 31 March 2019 44,150
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10f\YME - Ktk - |BBEWx
RRERLM )

10INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD LAND

(continued)

() EMEERERM - &E - LR#E (c) Other assets include furniture, equipment, air-conditioning

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

RREEBERDR
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AE - BEESZLVAEENTIXE
ANz -

(A EAFERN AEEEEERESE T

DIEEBERERE  WHEETZHE
P - WSS MBEN AT REEE - R
BEE - FRELYE - HEMR

K BRTE € ZEE R E 10,221,000t (=
Z— )\ : 11,160,0007T) ° 1L {EHE
BxtE  ZHoEN kBB R
1,952,000 c(ZE—N\F : AMD /&
&% /514,927,0007T) ° Btk 2 40 -
BT B R E Y - HES AR 8 AT IR
EEEMIRE - (ZT—N\F: R
B EYE - HESM R FE A R E S
BN RE) - JIREEENGEGTEE
R MEMZENFEREE  F
BNEER14%(ZF—N\F : 15%)E

==

E °

o - HE—_E—NF=ZA=+—H
IEFEEA AEEERESEMTGHT
—HOEENEFEEREYSE - #
BMBEHTRESEE - W0 BHRE
[E5482,492,0007C °

Eit - RFERERDE - BEEMR
BB E 18 % 58 10,221,000 L (= &
— \%F : 8,668,0007T) °

@R-_ZFE-hhF=A=+—H AKX

EERHH BRI FERITERND
HEEEF(E 51,222,000t (ZFE— N\
£ :1,322,0007T) °

plant, motor vehicles, computer systems and initial
purchases of cutlery and utensils.

(d) During the year, the Group’s management identified certain

branches which continued to under-perform and estimated
the recoverable amounts of the property, plant and
equipment of these branches. Based on these estimates,
the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
was written down by $10,221,000 (2018: $11,160,000)
during the year. The aggregate recoverable amounts of
three of these branches amounted to $1,952,000 based on
their value in use (2018: five of these branches amounted
to $14,927,000). Apart from the above, the recoverable
amounts of the remaining impaired property, plant and
equipment were minimal (2018: the recoverable amounts
of the remaining impaired property, plant and equipment
were minimal). The estimates of recoverable amount were
based on the property, plant and equipment’s value in use,
determined using a discount rate of 14% (2018: 15%).

In addition, during the year ended 31 March 2018, the
Group’s management re-estimated the recoverable
amounts of the property, plant and equipment of a branch
which had been impaired in prior year and wrote back
impairment loss of $2,492,000.

As a result, net impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment of $10,221,000 (2018: $8,668,000) were
recognised during the year.

(e) At 31 March 2019, the net book value of properties

pledged as security for banking guarantees granted to
certain subsidiaries of the Group amounted to $1,222,000
(2018: $1,322,000).



10\ YME - Ktk - BBEHx
RRkERLM 2)

() AEBUAKEHERLKRENE - &
LAENTRA—FE+F - FTEK
2HEATEELEESE - AKER
BEAARRHNELEHEHEERREED
REMEMNFBRZNT

10INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD LAND
(continued)

(f) The Group leases out investment properties under
operating leases. The leases initially run for one to ten
years. None of the leases includes contingent rentals. The
Group's total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

—F R Within one year 8,203 7,839
—FREAFRA After one year but within five years 19,509 22,861
HF% After five years - 4,253
27,712 34,953
1MEsE 11 GOODWILL

BRA(RIEA—A R Cost, at 1 April and 31 March
=A=+—8)

1,001 1,001

BEHENREERETHRERR

AEBEREEHRMELDHBIEHET
AR eERET(REELET])
L

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing
goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash-generating units

("CGU") identified according to the location of operation and
business segment as follows:

BEEK-—PREAM Restaurant operation — Mainland China 1,001 1,001
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Wl E 16D 11 GOODWILL (continued)
BEBENESELETHRERR Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing
() goodwill (continued)

HeELSE T kOB SREFEHE The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based
B - sTEFEEREEEEZANTR on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash
FUBEENR S REMET - flow projections based on financial budgets approved by

management covering a five-year period.

FEFEHAEENZE®RRE Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations:

EF=E Gross margin 13% 14%
HRE Growth rate 3% 3%
PrIg & Discount rate 14% 15%
a EEERETENBI TERRETHEE Management determined the budgeted gross margin based
= EFE - FRIEAITEXREEREAEEIE on past performance and their expectation for market
b SELSTEERBOBATITRE o development. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect
% specific risks relating to the relevant CGU.
o
3 NHEMEHMETE 12 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
-
s
I
&
=
ir
4
#a
e
K RBERMEE Non-current financial assets
RE AT ENEBRES Debt securities at amortised cost
—JFLTMEBRE — Unlisted but quoted 19,825 7,785
nBEREE Current financial assets
R HR AR FT B ETEFE Debt securities at amortised cost
—JELTERBRE — Unlisted but quoted 11,950 16,246

31,775 24,031
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NHEMEMEE2)

EMEBEBZSF QBTN —KEH
HBREBITHUETTTENTHEE - &F
FIZE2 8%5TE IR AT -ZTF 1A
—t+B: OHERE—REBMEBEEITH
AETTEHER R ERE - BFFIE2 3%
B AR A-TE_—F+tAH+=H:
ROB—RESCRIEBEITHOUARE
FHER R EIEE - HEFEIS%EE - B
BHEA—Z_—F+—HA=+H-

R-E—NF=ZA=+—HRFERHES
BAEIEGQBTEAL RS RIEEETH
IAETCEHER R ERE - IRFFI%2 8%t
B HBHRA-TE-_ZTEE+A=-1+H K
FOHERE—RSBEBEITHIAET
FHER R HIEE - BFFE2.3%EE - 5
HEA-_ZE_—®%tA+=H-

RBEBESFERREMN RS a @R
THAAREFENKRBEFE  BHEF
E36%:E - BIBIAR-_ZT—NLFtA
—t+hB-

R-BE-NE=A=+—"BHRDEHE
FIEATRALSREEEITHUARKE
FHEMTHEE 23R FRNE36% K
3.8%+E  BHHAR SR A=E—N\F+—
A+=Ak=—=—N\E&+—A+thB-

12 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

The non-current debt securities represented medium term
notes (a) issued by a financial institution in Mainland China,
denominated in United States dollars, bear interest at a
rate of 2.8% per annum with maturity date of 20 October
2020; (b) issued by a financial institution in Luxembourg,
denominated in United States dollars, bear interest at a rate
of 2.3% per annum with maturity date of 12 July 2021; and
(c) issued by a financial institution in Hong Kong, denominated
in Renminbi, bear interest at a rate of 4.5% per annum with
maturity date of 20 November 2021.

The non-current debt securities as at 31 March 2018
represented medium term notes (a) issued by a financial
institution in Mainland China, denominated in United
States dollars, bore interest at a rate of 2.8% per annum
with maturity date of 20 October 2020; and (b) issued by a
financial institution in Luxembourg, denominated in United
States dollars, bore interest at a rate of 2.3% per annum with
maturity date of 12 July 2021.

The current debt securities represented certificates of deposit
issued by a financial institution in Australia, denominated in
Renminbi, bear interest at a rate of 3.6% per annum with
maturity date of 29 July 2019.

The current debt securities as at 31 March 2018 represented
medium term notes issued by financial institutions in Mainland
China, denominated in Renminbi, bore interests at rates
of 3.6% and 3.8% per annum with maturity date of 13
November 2018 and 19 November 2018 respectively.
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BER 13 INVENTORIES

(a) ZEMBRREBIRNFE S : (@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise:

B MR Food and beverages 29,857 36,206
HFEM - BEMER Consumables, packaging materials and
H A FE1R other sundry items 3,703 4,294
33,560 40,500
(b) ERAZHNFEHBEIFAT ¢ (b)The analysis of the amount of inventories

recognised as an expense is as follows:

BEFEMRTDEE Carrying amount of inventories sold 696,532 679,576
7 & MR Write-down of inventories 78 209
696,610 679,785




14 FE MW AR 2% 0 K fth BB e 2 14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

FEURBRE X (FIR 1B R 245 ) Trade debtors, net of loss allowance 10,500 7,606
Ho b W3k Other debtors 11,353 9,896
ENHESMAREERS Rental and utility deposits paid 47,042 38,598
BT Prepayments 33,529 31,647
102,424 87,747
B T /& #05,489,000 L (=& — J/\F : All debtors, deposits and prepayments of the Group, apart
5,606,0007) A EXEZ SN - AEH from certain utility deposits totalling $5,489,000 (2018:
FrE KRR - e MBI FRIBET IR — $5,606,000), are expected to be recovered or recognised as an
FRWE HER AW expense within one year.
AR D AT Ageing analysis
PR HACK - 517 Uo AR KRN L Ath 8 LR As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis
THEWER R (B MBRBRER)REREE of trade debtors (which are included in trade and other
HETERRE T ¢ receivables), based on the invoice date and net of loss

allowance, is as follow:

—=Z=5=-F8 1 to 30 days 10,346 7,553
=t+—Zh+H 31 to 90 days 128 53
h+—Z—8/\+H 91 to 180 days 23 =
—BNt+—ZE=ZB~THH 181 to 365 days 3 -
10,500 7,606
AEEHEERETHNHERSITENR S The Group’s sales to customers are mainly on a cash basis.
RE - AEENTGETRREBHNHBIBER The Group also grants credit terms of 30 to 75 days to certain
NTF30BE75HREE - customers to which the Group provides catering services.
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BRITERNASNARERY
(@ RITEFRNREMBSEEYERE

15 BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

(@Q)Bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents
comprise:

HRITIF Deposits with banks 414,066 296,549
WRITFER MR Cash at bank and in hand 105,788 172,564
SERERERTTH Cash and cash equivalents in the

BeMReFEY consolidated cash flow statement 519,854 469,113

B={AAKRDHMNRITFHR  Bank d

eposits over three months - 51,484

519,854 520,597

(b) REREFENEBEHR

TRAKEASEREIBNAER
PHE BERSKFERSEY - K
BREGHNABRRESREIRR
ReRnERAEERERERERD
BRXERELTHESRENEE -

R-ZE-—tFONA—H

REMEZHNRERELE :

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities:
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash flow
statement as cash flows from financing activities.

IRITER
Bank loan
(Bi#£E17)

(note 17)

At 1 April 2017 3,583

Changes from financing cash flows:

BERRITEN Repayment of bank loan (1,720)
ST RITERHFE Interest paid on bank loan (68)
RERMEEENIRSRE#B M5  Total changes from financing cash flows (1,788)
B Other change:
RITEFA B E A (M5E5@)) Interest expense on bank loan (note 5(a)) 68
R-B-NEZA=t-8 4 At31March208 1863




LROFRNANREER/Y =)

(b) REBMEFBNEBEHR : (&)

15 BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities: (continued)

IRITER

Bank loan

(PfFEE17)

(note 17)

FT

$'000

R-ZZE—NFNBE—H At 1 April 2018 1,863
REMETEBNRESRESE Changes from financing cash flows:

BERRITENR Repayment of bank loan (1,720)

ST RITEFRBFE Interest paid on bank loan (32)

KERMETHNIRS REEEAEE  Total changes from financing cash flows (1,752)

Hi g Other change:
IRITEFHF B EA(MFE5)) Interest expense on bank loan (note 5(a)) 32
R-EBE-hE=A=+-—H At 31 March 2019 143
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16 BE 1 AR 3% F1 3 fth FE £ 5% 16 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

—E-NEF —ZT-N\F
=B=+—H =A=+—H
31 March 31 March
2019 2018
T F
$'000 $'000
EfBRZMEER  Creditors and accrued expenses 354,951 399,521 399,521
AHBE Contract liabilities (i), (i) 3,061 1,943 -

Hih R ZAEIE  Other payables and deferred
WA income 27,164 29,377 29,377
BliEERe Rental deposits received 27 49 49
LSS ELEN Advance receipts from coupons (i), (i) - - 1,943
385,203 430,890 430,890

B E Notes:

() FEBER=T—\F@A—BNHER(E
BTSRRI B ST ACEB B B
BIYEOH - EFTRIBMBE SR - K L&
BRETEM -

(i) ERKEBMBMERERDE15%HIER - BEFRA
WREt A B BB E (2R () ©

(i) The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 April 2018.
Under the transition methods chosen, comparative information is not

restated.

(i) Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, advance receipts from coupons are

included in contract liabilities (see note 1(c)(ii)).



16 FEfH AR E fh BB =k (2)

BRTEHETEMENKMELEKRAS
12,097,000 T (== — A4 : 13,653,000
JC) AN BT B A FE A< BR BOR B b B A 3K
TEH R —F &SR ERABWA - A
R—FAREE -

& A< BR BORN L FE Y SR B R 1R 3 52 B AT
BR MR - MEREEARNEKRED
T

16 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

All of the other trade and other payables, apart from certain
other payables and deferred income totalling $12,097,000
(2018: $13,653,000), are expected to be settled or recognised
as income or are repayable within one year.

Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors, based
on the invoice date, with the following ageing analysis as of
the end of the reporting period:

—Z£=+H 1 to 30 days 101,176 116,504
=t—EATH 31 to 90 days 1,397 334
ht—ZF—EN+E 91 to 180 days 1,815 91
—BNT—E=B/THH 181 to 365 days 57 8
—FLE Over one year 295 362

104,740 117,299

HEERNANABESHELTENERE
NGB T

AEETEHHERTUREREES S
U ERAL(E - HERE R TR E R R 2R
HEMERE LR TEESAEEESE
HARFRERR o

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are as followings:

The Group occasionally receives consideration when the
customers purchase coupons from the stores at the time of
purchase. The respective revenue is expected to be recognised
when the coupons are redeemed for future sales by customers
from stores or when the coupons expire.
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16 B ERMEMERR 2 16 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

EHEBNESH Movements in contract liabilities

A — B/ Balance at 1 April 1,943
A FRNEEITERS M IEK R Increase in contract liabilities as a result of
AHAaEEN issuance of coupons during the year 4,848
AFENERTAFNELHEEDN Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
WA TEK A # B &R recognising revenue during the year that was
included in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year (1,943)
B F W iR FRUCREY YA Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of recognising
MmERNELaERD revenue for advance received during the year (1,787)
R=A=+—HH&E% Balance at 31 March 3,061
FBEHNBERTR —FREBHERE All of the contract liabilities are expected to be settled or
N recognised as income within one year.
17 BITHE®R 17 BANK LOAN
RZE—NFNMZFE-—NF=A=+— At 31 March 2019 and 2018, the unsecured bank loan was
B SERRITERNERBAT repayable as follows:

—FREIEEEMNTEH Current portion of term loan due for

BRI ENERER D repayment within one year 143 1,720
—FERIHEERNTEHER : Term loan due for repayment after one year:

——FREMFA — After one year but within two years - 143
IRITE KA Total bank loan 143 1,863




17 BITERE)

AEENBDRTERAFAKEETE
RS BN R L R R - TIHFE -
HEZNTERNES BB LMERET
Hh o MAREERRY EHAHRE
BRZEBREER - AREEEHERRES
BTRERK -

AEEEERDESRERNFIFRNHE
23(a)(i) e RZZB—NF=A=+—H #
BERAMCHAGERENZN(ZZ
—N\F &) e

18 {& RiR kiR 7

REEZRBEBGRHIERTES T EUEH)
HRTE - AREEAEEEIERNS
BREE - RuBHMELAESHE([BES
FTE ) - ELE R — AR EHIURNK
E HBUMZEARE - BRERES
e BEEFREESARBEEBHRBEALR
H5% M B ESFTEMELHNK  BEEAK
HEEA B ER A30,000T(—F— N\4F ¢
30,0007T) » RS ANREHR ARTE S &
Moo

AEBEFENIIMBREANEESREE
W ENER X BIE HE E 6 R R FORIK
FHEIRREZ -

17 BANK LOAN (continued)

Certain of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to the Group's statement of
financial position ratios, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group were
to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities would
become payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors its
compliance with these covenants.

Further details of the Group’'s management of liquidity risk
are set out in note 23(a)(ii). As at 31 March 2019, none of the
covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been breached
(2018: None).

18 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme") under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees in Hong Kong under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the MPF Scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of $30,000 (2018: $30,000). Contributions to the plan vest
immediately.

Employees engaged by the Group outside Hong Kong are
covered by appropriate local defined contribution retirement
schemes pursuant to the local labour rules and regulations.
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19 LIERBEMNLIRMRERNE S

RZF——FNALH  ARFHABR
et 3 ([EEhERtal))

REBRAEETEIAT ERERERNBEG
EFRAEEXENERMNEES  EF(2H
FRTEERBIATERT) XBRA
B EIERAERR R REZBRE - X
REAQB RN - HERIGERTII=
ERNRSE  (RBRERTRHER
FEBE X P H B R PR A0 AL Wi (B
(IMNEXBRERTEAMABAEXRAE
B P A RERMBROBRD FHEHE
KN mEE - REFSBELRE R
BREZAPETAS - B SI &
RBBETTER A AR A NRERR - 5
BEABRESNHBRERABARAIRE
B

19 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

On 7 September 2011, the Company adopted an option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”).

Under the Share Option Scheme, Directors were authorised,
at their discretion, to invite any employee, Director (including
Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Director) or officer of any member of the Group or any related
trust or company to take up options to subscribe for shares in
the Company at a price which shall not be less than whichever
is the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date
of offer; (i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer and (iii)
the nominal value of a share. Save as determined by the Board
and provided in the offer of the relevant options, there is no
minimum period for which an option must be held before an
option can be exercised under the share option scheme. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company.



PDEUERTHLUENRIERNHX
(&)
(@MTEEREF?%%k%m

FRAE ﬁﬁ%h%ﬂﬁ
'f—f HX @ n\l:l

RYHH

Date granted

RTERMIBAHE -

Options granted to Directors:
——Z-AFMA-t+H
—on 20 April 2015
—-—Z-h¥+HC-H

—on 2 October 2015

- —Z-\FWA=+H

—on 20 April 2018

RYREMBLE

Options granted to employees:

-—Z-AFMA-1A
—on 20 April 2015

-~ /\fmMA=1H
—on 20 April 2018

- - \F+-A+/\H

—on 18 December 2018

e
TA
2

=32

(continued)

/

e A

Number of

options

1,190,000

45,000

40,000

3,188,000

1,060,000

70,000

Vesting conditions

ARZE— A FNA—RE=-T-__F
ZRA=t—BHRAs AR

Exercisable in five tranches during the period
from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2022

ARZZE—R"E+A—BE_T__F
NA=THBEAD BLTE

Exercisable in five tranches during the period
from 1 October 2016 to 30 September
2022

ARZZE-NFMA-HE-_ZT_hfF
=A=+—BHEA ﬁ%l:tfﬂ%

Exercisable in five tranches during the period
from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2025

ARZE-—RFMA-HE_T__F
=R=+—BHERS BHTRE

Exercisable in five tranches during the period
from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2022

ARZZE-NFMA-HE-_ZT_hF
=ZR=t—BHRAs DR

Exercisable in five tranches during the period
from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2025

ARZZE-NF+A—-BE_T_1F
NA=TBEEBAS ARtTE

Exercisable in five tranches during the period
from 1 October 2019 to 30 September
2025

19 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed
during the year are as follows, whereby all options
are settled by physical delivery of shares:

e

FHEOBR

Average

contractual
life of options

7.06F
7.0 years

7.0%

7.0 years

7.0%F

7.0 years

7.0%
7.0 years
7.0%
7.0 years
6.8

6.8 years
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PVLUBESEIHLUBROBERMNE 19EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

2 (E) (continued)
(b) BB R EME B MMEFIITEE D (b) The number and weighted average exercise prices
T : of share options are as follows:

ZT-NE —ZT-N\F
2019 2018
InEEF I
T6E  BREZE IfRE  BREHE
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
FURITE Outstanding at the beginning
of the year $20.72 4,423,000 $20.72 5,328,000
FRDITE Exercised during the year $20.72 (1,003,000) $20.73 (716,000)
FRERT Granted during the year $29.92 1,170,000 = =
FABLHK Lapsed during the year $22.03 (172,000) $20.70 (189,000)
FERRITE Outstanding at the end of the year $23.10 4,418,000 $20.72 4,423,000
ERA{TE Exercisable at the end of the year $20.70 357,000 $20.70 246,000
REEANEITEBRERITEB M The weighted average share price at the date of exercise
BFEIRER29.85 L (ZF— N\F : for shares options exercised during the year was $29.85
32.257L) ° (2018: $32.25).
RZZE—NF=A=+—BRTEE The options outstanding at 31 March 2019 had a weighted
AR g F17EE A23.10m (= average exercise price of $23.10 (2018: $20.72) and a
= — )\ :20.7270) * AN FHE weighted average remaining contractual life of 3.78 years
BANER A3.78FE(ZZE— )\ £ : (2018: 4.01 years).
4.01F) -



VEUEREENLURMHBERHI
8(#)
(o) BN R EEMAERE
RETEREMESRENR A E
REREMBREND L EE
B MEERNZAXBEELIED
flish - RN A KB AEEEE
HNGAEE - ZAABEEN hE
BRFITERRNEA -

19 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair value
of share options granted. The estimate of the fair value of
the share options granted is measured based on a trinomial
lattice model. The contractual life of the share option is used
as an input into this model. Expectations of early exercise
are incorporated into the trinomial lattice model.

R-ZE—N\F
mMB—=—+H
BT R BB

Options
granted at
20 April
2018

RZE—N\F
+ZA+N\H
TR IR iE
Options
granted at
18 December
2018

BRREN A EEM Fair value of share options and

FRYERRER - assumptions:
RAEBEHNLARBE Fair value at measurement date $3.947T $2.187T
R (B Share price $30.007T $26.407T
TEE Exercise price $30.147T $26.427T
TEHRR 1R Expected volatility 18.59% 17.89%
HAREEARR (A =B BhfE Option life (expressed as weighted

AL BT A B0 h0 A 35 average life used in the modelling

HRRR 515 under trinomial lattice model) 7.0 years ¢ 6.8 years F
TEHRAR B EE X Expected dividend yield 3.17% 5.38%
AR (ILRINEES  Risk-free interest rate (based on

ZEHE) Exchange Fund Notes) 2.02% 2.03%

BRELREREEEET - ALE
HEHEFEERBRETANALE
685 - REEBBEEEY - BT
B A 531 7 45 £ 27055 75 B 44 15
f o

Share options were granted under a service condition. The
condition has not been taken into account in the grant
date fair value measurement of the services received.
There were no market conditions associated with the share
option grants.
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20 R EMBKARMATHOMER 20 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION
() SR E AR R AT R AR EAFAIE A (a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of

financial position represents:

REEREFER L Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for

the year 40,177 39,713
ENEHAEH Provisional Profits Tax paid (29,683) (29,289)
10,494 10,424
(.3 Representing:
Al E AR IR Current tax recoverable - (67)
o FERT AR BT IR Current tax payable 10,494 10,491
S
2 10,494 10,424
2
=
o
T
o
(@}
o
z
s
I3
2
=
ir
4
#a
&£
K
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W0ESHEBRRAEMTHREBMNEZ 20INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(D) ERIRELERBEENESE (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
CHEGEVERIARERNELERIE The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
(BE) /BENEKRS P UAREEZ recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
E-NEFM-_ZT-NF=A=+—H position and the movements during the years ended 31
IEFEEFHOT - March 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

gl REER
RENES AT RED
ARRE

allowances

Revaluation in excess Future
of investment of related benefit of
properties depreciation tax losses
Tr Tr Tr

$'000 $'000 $'000

RETHEEMELHE: Deferred tax arising from:

RZZE—+FmA—A At 1 April 2017 6,127 19,350 (145) 25,332
EiRaBERYY/ Charged/(credited) to the consolidated

(5P A) (FitiE6(a) statement of profit or loss (note 6(a)) 2,257 (3,120) 38 (825)
RZZE-\F=A=1+—H At 31 March 2018 8,384 16,230 (107) 24,507
RZZE-\EMA—A At 1 April 2018 8,384 16,230 (107) 24,507
ERARERGIA)/ (Credited)/charged to the consolidated

3II% (B zE6(a)) statement of profit or loss (note 6(a)) (878) 4,137) 63 (4.952)
RZE-NF=A=1+—H At31March 2019 7,506 12,093 (44) 19,555
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0 FEMBRARMTHOMBM Z) 20INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
(continued)

(b) EFERIELERIREEMEE : (4)

ERA BN ERIERR  Net deferred tax assets recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial
position (44) (107)
ERAMBHR RN ERIERR  Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in

ERERIRE EFE

RIERIEEEEHE the consolidated statement of financial
position 19,599 24,614
19,555 24,507

=
S (o) REERWIELHIEEE : (c) Deferred tax assets not recognised:
5 NEBR W AHRRFTHERIB The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in
% 57,544,000 7t ( = & — A &F respect of the cumulative tax losses of $57,544,000 (2018:
2 69,487,0007T) kA T W E A A H A $69,487,000) and deductible temporary differences of
) R E R = 524,182,000 (= ZF— N\ $4,182,000 (2018: $3,974,000) of certain subsidiaries
% % 13,974,000 ) R EB@HIET as management of the Group considers that it is not
g MEEE  AATEEEREERRS probable as at 31 March 2019 that future taxable profits
i BHE-_T-—NLGF=A=+—8 " & against which the losses can be utilised will be available
= MEBIAAIEERANKEER in the relevant tax jurisdictions. Other than tax losses of
EESUHANABAEBEEENRKER subsidiaries in Mainland China of $20,394,000 (2018:
® wmA e BT HRBERMHE R RS $32,337,000) which have an expiry period of five years
% 15 €518 20,394,000 T (=& — \ F - from the date of incurrence under existing PRC tax

32,337,00070) iR BERITHBEFEA S
BERAHBTAFRIEN  BER
TR BEHTEBETRERRE -

legislation, these tax losses do not expire under current tax
legislation.



21 %%

21PROVISIONS

RERE S &1 Provision for long service payments 18,439 12,273
THE S PTRE B R AN Provision for reinstatement costs for
rented premises 61,966 46,310
80,405 58,583
B mANRESEaE] Less: Amount included under
o “current liabilities” (23,687) (11,774)
56,718 46,809
(a) REABRE € &EfB (a) Provision for long service payments

REA—H At 1 April 12,273 12,023
BRI INER Additional provision made 7,307 1,640
)b Provision utilised (1,141) (1,390)
R=A=+—H At 31 March 18,439 12,273
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21 #f| (&)

(a) REAFRIE S M (&)
BEEBCEEBGEDN)  AEBANE
FERTEAEBMBBHERLERFN
EEBBEOHREIN—SHE- &
NEERIZERENGRETLHEF
EME  LeREREAEBRKE
2B MR ERNEEMREER - A
EEYES i AET S TTEEE
BE -

(b) ME S PRV E R AN 2

21 PROVISIONS (continued)
(a) Provision for long service payments (continued)

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group
is obligated to make lump sum payments on cessation
of employment in certain circumstances to employees
who have completed at least five years of service with
the Group. The amount payable is dependent on the
employees’ final salary and years of service, and is reduced
by entitlement accrued under the Group’s retirement
schemes that are attributable to contributions made by the
Group. The Group does not set aside any assets to fund
the above.

(b) Provision for reinstatement costs for rented premises

RIEA—H At 1 April 46,310 43,815
BEHRAEEINERS Additional provision made 16,886 4,550
O 8 4 Provision utilised (1,230) (2,055)
R=A=+—H At 31 March 61,966 46,310

AR 4% B 5 3 5T 57 # AH B W A O K
AR ER B 7R 7 AR R R & 15 3 JE R B AR B
VIEERESM > ARKARAAKE
EPE - Bt ARBEERERKELE
MEER AR EMETER T84 -

22 BF MR
() KB A ST EMAKED
MR EROERR - HIINE64R
R EREER o

Under the terms of the rental agreements signed with
landlords, the Group shall remove and re-instate the rental
premises at the Group’s cost upon expiry of the relevant
rental agreements. Provision is therefore made for the
best estimate of the expected reinstatement costs to be
incurred.

22 CAPITAL AND RESERVES

(a) The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 64.



22 BAEMGEM 7)

(b) 2
() BRAFERNADAERRRE
RS

22 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(b) Dividends

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the year

DERMHRIFEIES  Interim dividend declared and paid of
FM37.010 37.0 cents (2018: 37.0 cents)
(—Z=— )\4 : 37.01lh) per share 47,597 47,313
NGBS REEZEDIR  Final dividend proposed after the end
NEARR B EAR81.01L of the reporting period of 81.0 cents
(==Z=—)/\&F : 105.01l) (2018: 105.0 cents) per share 104,207 134,183
151,804 181,496

REE-_T—NFHLA=1+AL
NEAMFEHEEmME RZF
—N\—NEERPHBHRETE
ER PR B HEE O B R
SRR B EEE A48,0007T
(2T —+tFNA=1+HILX
@7 : 4,00070) - ZEFELEER
RBPELFELRANGEERD
K2 ()17 {50 B AR v T B BT AR A 5
EAEIERE -

R ERTHEREZ D RN R
BHAREREMRERRAE -

In respect of the interim dividend for the six months
ended 30 September 2018, there is a difference of
$48,000 (six months ended 30 September 2017:
$4,000) between the interim dividend disclosed in
the 2018/19 interim financial statements and amount
approved and payable after the interim period. The
difference represents dividends attributable to (i)
shares repurchased and (ii) new shares issued upon the
exercise of share options, before the closing date of the
Register of Members.

The final dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting period has not been recognised as a liability
at the end of the reporting period.

143



FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

RREEBERDR

B 75 ¥R 2R MY

Notes to the Financial Statements

22 BAEMGE 7)
(b) IR E. (&)

(i) BRE-BBEFE » WRRFEK
BRI ENAR QAR R
RE

22 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(b) Dividends (continued)
(ii) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

Company attributable to the previous financial

year, approved and paid during the year

BRE—MBFEE - ¥R Final dividend in respect of the

REEAZE RN previous financial year, approved
REARR B & A%105.01 and paid during the year, of 105.0
(ZZ—N\F : 58.01l) cents (2018: 58.0 cents) per share 135,208 74,157
BRE—MBFEE - ¥R Spedial final dividend in respect of the
REEIZAERINH previous financial year, approved
5 Bl B B = AR 2 and paid during the year, of nil cent
—ZF— )\£ : 50.01ll) (2018: 50.0 cents) per share - 63,928

135,208 138,085

REE_ZE-N\F=ZA=+—H1t
FERAREME RZZT—N\F
JE B 7 ¥R 3% P R Y SR BR AR B B
FEZAERSNESE 2 BNESR
1,025,000 c(BE_T—+tF= A
=T —HIEFENRAKRERER
FRHEARL B : 748,0007T) @ RIEEMR
RBFPERFELRNITERERE
METRRIRAIFE ABLARE °

In respect of the final dividend for the year ended 31
March 2018, there is a difference of $1,025,000 (final
dividend and special final dividend for the year ended
31 March 2017: $748,000) between the final dividend
disclosed in the 2018 annual financial statements and
amounts approved and paid during the year which
represents dividends attributable to new shares issued
upon the exercise of share options, before the closing
date of the Register of Members.



22T MR 2) 22 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c) IR (c) Share capital
—T-NEF —T-N\F
2019 2018
anE- 4= BHEE
Number Number
of shares of shares
& TR
‘000 ‘000
EERAK Authorised:
FREEITTE®EE  Ordinary shares of $1 each 240,000 240,000 240,000 240,000
ERTRBERAE . Issued and fully paid:
MW A—H At 1 April 127,793 127,793 127,164 127,164
BB R ERT 2 Shares issued under share option
BITE MR (BEEG))  scheme (note (i) 1,003 1,003 716 716
BIEE AR5 (BFEG))  Shares repurchased (note (ii)) (146) (146) (87) (87)
W=A=+—8H At 31 March 128,650 128,650 127,793 127,793
MoaE - Notes:

(i) REBREBBITRG

AEENEREFEARBARARLBER
4 #£1,003,000% (== — )\ % : 716,000
%) - B3 520,780,0007C( =& — \4F :
14,843,0007T) * #£71,003,0007T(=F
—\%F : 716,0007C) s2 ABRA - TE#A T &Y
19,777,0007C (=ZF — \4F : 14,127,000
70) BIE AR D [EBR ° 918,000 (=%
— J\& : 468,000t ) B 1R & M 5F 1(q)(ii)
FIE M T ECR B E AN HE A RN R E
ﬁ; °

(i) Shares issued under share option scheme

During the year, options were exercised to subscribe for
1,003,000 (2018: 716,000) ordinary shares in the Company at
a consideration of $20,780,000 (2018: $14,843,000), of which
$1,003,000 (2018: $716,000) was credited to share capital and
the balance of $19,777,000 (2018: $14,127,000) was credited to
the share premium account. $918,000 (2018: $468,000) has been
transferred from the capital reserve to the share premium account
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(qg)(ii).
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22 BAEMGE 7)

(o) BAR#)
s - (48)

(i) BEAXHKRH

ARRNBE_T-NAF=ZA=t—AL
FREEBAMBAGBROOFENT

22 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(ii) Purchase of own shares

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company repurchased
its own shares on the Stock Exchange as follows:

BRRETT BRRER1T

2 E P 418 BB HIRE

Number of Highest Lowest

shares Aggregate price paid price paid

=5,/ A Month/year repurchased price paid per share per share
T
$:000

—Z-N\FhA September 2018 22,500 612 $27.207% $27.157%

—T-N\F+A October 2018 123,000 3,235 $27.207¢ $25.507C
145,500 3,847

EFEIRERD B AATEE - AARIKE BT
BABHEREZERBRNHAEE - 3
15 85 B% 19 BT 2 1+ 9 51 5 213,701,000 7T &
11,000 BB R R ZKAEEARRFN
&7 3 (B BR AR 0B ©

(d) EBEHHEEMAZE
(i) BRiEE
O EERNERSIARAE
2B ZE150 R BB 1576 FI B R iE
—NN—F(RBDERIFIRE °

(i) E5
PE 5 8 B AR I R B R 3 R A
MR AEENMBINEEZER -
RN AR IR MY A2 1 (u) PR S Y & 5T IR
RERIEE LA -

The above repurchased shares were cancelled and the issued
share capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal value
of these shares accordingly. The premium and transaction costs
paid on the repurchase of shares of $3,701,000 and $11,000
respectively were charged to the Company’s share premium
account.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by sections 150 and 157 of the Company’s
Bye-laws and the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

(ii) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of Mainland China operations. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
set out in note 1(u).



22T MR 2)
(d)REENEENBEE)
(i) BAZEER

RE-NANANFH—BER  ~&
B ATER QB2 KB R R EH B
NGRS UNE )= PN oo
BEEFEBAARRDEITRND
EENBBECDIARRRNHAR

ARAWNBARKBIERE
NN RFPERIFRE - R
BERE-NN—F(RFDER)
RRBHHABRATBIADIK ©

AT ETIIERT - ARFTH
BAGHN 284 2 VR SR B AR 8 AR
I -

(a) A BR1& R 3K A8 R ST 2
HImBE 2k

(b) HEEMTLBEERG R
HE 8D RTRARRG
BRI «

(iv) EAGHE

BN B AR AR MY R 1(a)(i) P L
PABRD RER ) AR ERTIRR
BRE T AR AR EBNARTRER
BRETHENAAEE -

(v) THHZEYE (L

THMEEMELREEERRE
BRNMEEARENERETE
EREENAREEZES -

22 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iii) Contributed surplus

Pursuant to a reorganisation in 1999, the former
holding company of the Group became a subsidiary of
the Company. The excess of the consolidated net assets
of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company over the
nominal value of the shares issued by the Company has
been credited to the Company’s contributed surplus.

The application of the Company’s contributed surplus is
governed by the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. Under
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, contributed surplus
of the Company is available for distribution.

However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if:

(a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be
less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium accounts.

(iv) Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the grant date fair value
of unexercised share options granted to employees of
the Company that has been recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 1(q)(ii).

(v) Land and buildings revaluation reserve

The land and buildings revaluation reserve comprises
the fair value change arising on the revaluation of
property held for own use upon transfer to investment
property.
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22T MR 2)
(e) EIBE K

22 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(e) Capital management

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

RREEBERDR

AEBEREANTIZANRRER
SEARELE  EMmEZETEER
BKFEENEMREBBILASERAE
EESRENSTR  B#ESRREHD
W W AEMA SRR E RS o

AEEBEGERARINERREAR
B NEESRSEEKFAESTR
B PR IR [ e R AR 2 A AR P R g
HEZMRERE ZMIGETE I
BN W B E AR

R-Z—NE=A=+—8  K&£H
KA 143,000 (—F — )\ F ¢
1,863,0007T) ° BbHh  RZZTE—NF
ZA=+—H BELXRBEIXNEEEL
EREBRAFMEENLLE) 20.0%
ZE—NF 1 02%)  c RZE—NF
ZA=+—8 AEENTHERM
REMF L EEBEMA $£519,854,0007T
—Z—)\# : 520,597,0007T) °

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholder, by pricing
products commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

As 31 March 2019, the Group has total borrowings
amounting to $143,000 (2018: $1,863,000). The gearing
ratio, representing the ratio of total borrowings to the total
share capital and reserves of the Group was 0.0% (2018:
0.2%) at 31 March 2019. The Group had time deposits and
cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March 2019 amounting
to $519,854,000 (2018: $520,597,000).



VepAREERARRE

(a) B ERER A REE

AEBEAEEREBBERLRE
B npEe  MENEERERR - K
SEHELRABRNEAEREARRER
5 LEELBR P BRI A & B R B B R ROR
MEFME - #EHWT -

ARRAEEREBBERARE
g RpEsNERER -

ZFR R EE T AR E S R E IR
BERTEHIER

() FERRE
FERBREXSHFREITEEN
BEEMERAEER I B E RN
Rk - AEEMNEERREZRE
JREE Wi B 35 6T L A R e L A
BE BN AKRENXZHF /A
SERREERREEART
HEAKEEBERBRITEFRERS
MASEBYZEERRER -

RBERR - FERRILELRE
MEBAKTER - REBPAAZH
RXEERBRBEE SV BARRRS
BREMEENRETE © FRIE
25FTE AR A R B AR 3 M B A B RO R
THRBEERHMBER  ~A&H
W E R EREEAKE
AAZEERR -

23FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE

(a) Financial risk management and fair value

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

Exposure to credit, liquidity and currency risks arises in the
normal course of the Company’s business.

These risks are managed by the Company’s financial
management policies and practices described below.

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is
primarily attributable to trade and other receivables
and other financial assets. The Group's exposure to
credit risk arising from bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents is limited because the counterparties are
banks for which the Group considers to have low credit
risk.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group does not
have any significant concentration of credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the statement
of financial position. Except for the financial guarantee
given by the Company in respect of banking facilities
granted to certain subsidiaries as disclosed in note
25, the Group does not provide any other guarantees
which would expose the Group to credit risk.
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VEMEBREERAARREZ) 23FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)
(a) B2 BER A AEEE) (a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
() EERREZ) (i) Credit risk (continued)
(1) JE L BR RN EL fh B U K (1) Trade and other receivables

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

RREEBERDR

150

R U AR SRR E L M 3K M
5 BRFBBAR —BENK
RESHRELENERRBEDH
EPYARZEREERHE -
AEEEEPHEELPBEX
MEHRROLENBRNE
ReeH  AEBEBEFPRE
FEEMERARENNERE
e ARE - NEBRIRE
ARARNEERERPTARR
EREERNE  RARBER
Bl B e FE R
ARAE M Y KAE30H E75H
MNEIH - EEFBRT » A%
ErgEREFERMAE M -

AEERBEENBEFES
BHEEEENSBE(RAER
ARt E ) RET ERKERFNE
fil AR B R - R A
SENELEEBBELRIY R
RATRAEFEHBZEAMNEBER
BEAFERZEZRE  AURE
BHARFENBRERTE
REAEETFEFFEEEL
—HHD -

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on customers
of catering service requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customer operates. No credit evaluations are
performed to retail customers that are made in cash,
Octopus or via major credit cards. Trade and other
receivables are due within 30 to 75 days to certain
customers to which the Group provides catering
services. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade and
other receivables at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs, which is calculated using a provision matrix.
As the Group's historical credit loss experience does
not indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group’s different customer bases.



23FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)

VeMERETERAARRER)

(a) AR EER A REEE)
() EERK(EZ)
(1) FEURBR R FNE Ath R UK GR (42)

(i) Credit risk (continued)
(1) Trade and other receivables (continued)

BHBRAXERBEAFER
BAKRIE  URBELE
U EBMEOKERL - &8
A A7 AR R B K &R [ P AR R
B KR IR TR R B R H &
BRA=EZENEZRETH
E -HREFPHNRHESME
B AREARBBEENT
8 B R KRR SR Lt B UK
FOEHEEBRRRRAGR
MARE - Bt - ZFHEHRD
BREBITER  EHE—
Z-NE=ZA=+—RALLFE
A N5 830 R Bt FE KBRS
H s FRUGRER IR RS -

R - ARBERBA/REBE(ER
AT ELERI)FITRAI B -
E-_Z-NF=A=+—B%
BEXNBKREFBAT AR -

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past five years. These rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic
data has been collected, current conditions and
the Group's view of economic conditions over
the expected lives of the receivables. ECL rates
of the trade and other receivables are assessed
to be minimal, because of the customers’ good
background and reputation and no past default
history. Thus, the loss allowance provision for such
balances was insignificant and no loss allowance
provision was recognised in respect of the trade
and other receivables for the year ended 31 March
2019.

The Group assessed that there is no significant loss
allowance recognised in accordance with HKFRS 9 as
at 31 March 2019.
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EMEREEROABE D) 23FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)
(a) B2 BER A AEEE) (a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
() EERREZ) (i) Credit risk (continued)
(1) FEUBR FORNE b fE U ZN (42 ) (1) Trade and other receivables (continued)

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

RREEBERDR
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RIF( BB S 2ER)E395 2
S B AR

—ZT-N\FEMA—BRREESE
KERGERERAEZIRERE
R2EMF 1)) — =T —N\F
MA—BZAEBNEE) - I
R AR B R B /O FE IR BR ZXAY BR
WOMAT

Comparative information under HKAS 39

Prior to 1 April 2018, an impairment loss was
recognised only when there was objective evidence
of impairment (see note 1(j)(i) — policy applicable
prior to 1 April 2018). The ageing analysis of trade
receivables that were not considered to be impaired
was as follows:

RA B ESORE Neither past due nor impaired 7,114
BH—EAAT Less than one month past due 487
mE—==A One to three months past due 5

7,606

78 75 J80 HA SR AY B Wk B &%
EHARBIRCHENREZRP
B -

B 78 HI{B KR (B & FE W 508 &
EREXRFEBREEBHER
MNRZR/IUIEF - EEER
B RBUAEKER  BREER
BEXWRAERNE  MAH
HRRDEER/ATAZ BN D -
B Lt % 7B L B R R R AT SR ()
HEEEE -

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a number of independent customers that
had a good track record with the Group. Based
on past experience, management believed that no
impairment allowance was necessary in respect of
these balances as there had been no significant
change in credit quality and the balances were still
considered fully recoverable.



VeMERETERAARRER)

(a) AR EER A REEE)
() EERK(EZ)

2 HtheRmEE
BEBRESNEBTHAARY
SRR RRET - ERXR
SHFOEEFRRY - BE
BXTEHMBMAEEIEITE
& o

AEEZREER T @A
HEEBERENSERRAELE
SFRBRER B AK
BRREBEFNEERRKR
BREBEAREY  BAEREK
BRERE -

(i) mBEZERE

AEEANENEEEREARAD
FNRTEETHE  ERRSAHK
K RE HI R B ME 8 B SUA RN TR AT
ReFBR(MREFABBRLR
REELR  BERISKARAES
SHHR) - AREHBRERE H
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23FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)

(i) Credit risk (continued)

(2) Other financial assets
Investments in debt securities are normally, issued
by corporate with sound credit standing. Given their
high credit standing, management does not expect
any investment counterparty to fail to meet its
obligations.

The Group measures loss allowances for debt
securities at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs and
assessed there was no significant loss allowance and
change in credit risk for the debt securities.

(ii) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject
to approval by the Company’s board of directors when
the borrowings exceed certain pre-determined levels of
authority. The Group'’s policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirement and its compliance with lending
covenants, if any, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of
the Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay.

153



B 75 ¥R 2R MY

Notes to the Financial Statements

EMEABREERAARES) 23FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)
() AfERERAREBEE) (a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(i) RBESER(E) (i) Liquidity risk (continued)

Bk
AR —F5E LAk
RESE mE AR —FR BRER BRER
Total Morethan ~ More than
contractual one year but  two years but
Carrying  undiscounted Within less than less than
amount one year two years five years
T T T
$'000 i !
RIER Bank loan 143 143 143 - -
Bl ske Rental deposits received 2313 2,313 27 1,113 1173
o) FEfEEZMESER  Creditors and accrued expenses
s (BHABRIN) excluding contract liabilities 354,951 354,951 354,951 - -
g 357,407 357,407 355,121 1,113 1173
3
T
[a)
8
=
£ it
I AREE —FLE EN £
o RRSE M —ER BRER BERER
Total Morethan ~ More than
iifku contractual one year but  two years but
® Carrying  undiscounted Within less than less than
X amount cash flow one year two years five years
T T T T Tr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RITER Bank loan 1,863 1,888 1,745 143 -
[RLGER en Rental deposits received 2,214 2,214 49 84 2,081

JERERZAEEE  Creditors and accrued expenses
(BRF 2B excluding advance receipts
Bop) from coupons 399,521 399,521 399,521 = =

403,598 403,623 401,315 227 2,081
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(a) Bl BB R A AEBEE)
(i) FIZE S

AEENMNERBREZRERITE
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EERTEFNEBEMNEAE32%
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R-_ZE—-AE=A=+—80 " &
ETEEBERIRFEM A S0EE
B(BREMEEMAIZEEERTT
B) ANEEMORBZREMNFRSE
mFEER AL HEAN#I1,0007C( =
Z— \f : 8,0007T) °

M EREEHITER - BRFIEE
DEREDROMAEE - ARLE D
BBERFIE HREDE 2D - 5
M RNE =T — \ SRR
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(iv) E¥EkR

AEEMESHEERRERIRA
UARSEREXFENEBNEREE
AN BB D BB AL B IRTT AN 3R
EMBEFEY ULEBSRE
E - SlBEERRNERIEREX
TTRARYE - MREREHH KRG
B AEESELRFIZREE
REBEINE - ARERASFEREE
MERFE A HOKF o

23FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises mainly from bank
loan. The bank loan bears interest at market rates.

The effective interest rate of the Group’s bank loan as
at 31 March 2019 is 3.2% (2018: 2.5%) per annum.

At 31 March 2019, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have
decreased/increased the Group's profit after tax and
retained profits by approximately $1,000 (2018:
$8,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group's profit after tax that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2018.

(iv) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents and other
financial assets that are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the operations
to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this
risk are primarily United States dollars and Renminbi.
The Group ensures that the net exposure is kept to an
acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies
at spot rates where necessary to address short term
imbalances.
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VemERETERARRER)

(@) BBERERAAEBEGE)
(v) E¥ER(E)

TR ASE BN 8 E B R AR
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ENERREEXREMELENE
BREREE - pIHmM S - BRER
BENBEHRNBEXRBERE
BN - ERABRETBRENANEE
P R K B IR IME R R T B
BRRAEENEZER -

23FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(iv) Currency risk (continued)

The following tables detail the Group’s exposure at
the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in
a currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposure are shown in
Hong Kong dollars, translated using the spot rate at the
end of the reporting period. Differences resulting from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency are
excluded.

SNERBREE (ABESIR)
Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
—E-NEF —T-N\F
2019 PAONKS]

eI A e

AR
United

NEIES
Dollars

United
NEIES
Dollars

EMEmEE Other financial assets 7,874 23,901 7,785 16,246

RITFHMITEH  Bank deposits and cash and
HEEEY cash equivalents 102,489 73,818 110,396 87,404
110,363 97,719 118,181 103,650




VepERETERARRER)

(@) B EBERAAREBEGE)
(v) E¥ER(E)
TR P AN 5 B O BR T A& 0 A B AR
BarEEAREMAZEARR
MEXRNHERRDEE (RRMHM
BEMRRERER )M HR
BEME - EESE  mRBITEX
TLHENE - REBBEHERITH BTN
EXAGHRERERED -

AR Renminbi

23FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)

(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(iv) Currency risk (continued)

The following table indicates the change in the Group's
profit after taxation and retained profits that would
arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group
has significant exposure at the end of the reporting
period had changed at that date, assuming all other
risk variables remained constant. In this respect, as
Hong Kong dollar is pegged to United States dollar,
the Group does not expect any significant movements
in the United States dollar/Hong Kong dollar exchange
rate.

ZE-NEF —E-N\EF
2019 2018

PR & T & Briigis i &
[Ex FF/ RBEF EXRLEH TRER A
(T&) am/ Cad) (FEk) #m,/ ()
Increase/ Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit (decrease) in profit
in foreign  after taxation in foreign  after taxation
exchange and retained exchange and retained
rates profits rates profits
T T
5.0% 4,886 5.0% 5,183
(5.0% (4,886) (5.0)% (5,183)
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VEMEBREERAARREZ) 23FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE (continued)
(a) B2 BER A AEEE) (a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(v) 2REE (v) Fair values
AREEER Fair value hierarchy

TREVNAKENREHRIZER
EEMFENERTIAAAEE-
ZEeMTAERA(BEYHR
CRLIVEREE Sl AN/ §-Figg
FIAEN=ERAEERER K&
B2RATHRETEMEANEA
ENABEREENEEE - tmE
EARBEAEREMERBENE
A

- F-EAMBE: RERE-E
L ABCEIHEREEXARR
AAERMEREMSNAREH
BRE)RFERAEE-

- F_ERMGE: ERAE_ER
BAERESE - ERNATE
KREANE)ARBEEATATEER
BWAERFEAAEE - TH
BRm AEEERRT SR
MEAE -

~ ECEMEE RBEATT
B AEREA R BE -

BE_Z-—hhER-_ZT—NFE=A
=+—HLEFE VTEsMIAR
EARnEBEEEHzEHEREME
%o AEBMNBREREAREERE
Fo2 IR ER R IR BT A TR
REBEEE -

FRARBEINENEHTANRD
RfEE
REBIRKAREHRAARD S
MITANEKESE  BER_-F
—NFR-FE-NF=A=1+—H
BAREBEDRTK

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which
a fair value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available.

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

During the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018,
there were no transfers between financial instruments
in different levels. The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the
end of the reporting period in which they occur.

Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than
fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at 31 March
2019 and 2018.
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(b) @& T A /YR

VALUE (continued)

(b) Categories of financial instruments

23FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

EREE Financial assets
EMemEE Other financial assets
— IR SR AFTER — Debt securities at
BEEHES amortised cost 31,775 24,031
R EN AT E/ Financial assets measured at
CRIEE amortised cost
— R ANIE S — Debtors and deposits 137,412 127,702
—RITEFERFBE L - Bank deposits and cash and
ReEEY cash equivalents 519,854 520,597
. 657,266 648,299
689,041 672,330
e =L Financial liabilities
PR SH A AN SRR AN At amortised cost or cost
—BiEeES — Rental deposits received 2,313 2,214
—ERERRIESEA — Creditors and accrued expenses 354,951 399,521
—RITER — Bank loan 143 1,863
357,407 403,598
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24 i 24 COMMITMENTS

(R —BE-—NE=A=+—BKRENM

R KB RN AR AR
I

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2019 not

provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

SEEY Contracted for 11,237 4,878
DEREERTN Authorised but not contracted for 4,750 11,907
15,987 16,785

O)R=F—NE=A=+—8  BRET

BN EEHEE A RENORIE
YMEMENFRERZNT

(b)At 31 March 2019, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect
of properties are payable as follows:

— %R Within one year 427,627 406,191
—FRERAFR After one year but within five years 563,835 557,768
hLE® After five years 17,280 7,066

1,008,742 971,025

AEENKZHEEREIWE - &
LUAE-RONLRB—FENF X
BEREEEIHAKRES  ERMA
BB EMEE - MENKER
FEEE  URBRMSHES - HAME
ERBKENI10% E20% (ZF—N
F:10%E20%) mREREEHBER
XREE BTIBRELRERA -

AEBESHEBLBEENE -KR_F
—NWFE=ZA=+—8 " BREFAIRRK
Mo MBARBHE—FAR—F#ERA
AFEAATKRMZESARBLE
% Al 3,593,000 T (=& — )\ F :
3,578,000 7t ) & 1,745,000 70 ( = &
—\£ : 5,221,0007¢) °

The Group leases a number of properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one
to nine years, with an option to renew the lease when
all terms are renegotiated. Lease payments are usually
increased to reflect market rentals. The contingent rent
payments are determined based on 10% to 20% (2018:
10% to 20%) of the revenue over the base rents and are
excluded from the information disclosed above.

Part of the leased properties has been sublet by the Group.
At 31 March 2019, the total future minimum sublease
payments expected to be received under non-cancellable
subleases within one year and after one year but within five
years were $3,593,000 (2018: $3,578,000) and $1,745,000
(2018: $5,221,000) respectively.



BHBAR

RZEB-NF=ZA=+—0  KREE#H
ET2ENBRRESNRBER LA
RITEBEEMRRITELER -

RBEMR EZRBRBEEEERS
BARRWMRENAGEETK - RS
X ARRRBEZERBAAENREAX
BRAMENBARCRINERERR
92,824,000t (== — J\4 : 93,208,000
L) BERRERRERBAEREER -

AR A A B R PR AR ME SR AT AR MR
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26 EXFABARS

R IS R H A B D FTIR BRI X &) I\ 4
ERON - RNEEEITT T E KRB AR
5

() IEMPMEE7PAIREE - ARERASHN
MERENARBEFTNNE - B2
REAEAEIBEIRA IR (2T
5(b)) e

b)ERFER AR —KHBAFM
FREEBEERAR([FE])HEA—IE
W - MERERBGLE - BIBEAL
ERERKKEBRES ° Lo - &
RABEEERNENES - FRNELEN
HE&THA2,631,0000(—F—N\E :
2,280,0007T) °

25 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 March 2019, guarantees are given to banks by the
Company in respect of mortgage loans and other banking
facilities extended to certain wholly-owned subsidiaries.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Directors do
not consider it probable that a claim will be made against
the Company under these guarantee arrangements. The
maximum liability of the Company at the end of the reporting
period under the guarantees is the amount of the facilities
drawn down by all the subsidiaries that are covered by the
guarantees, being $92,824,000 (2018: $93,208,000).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in
respect of these guarantees as their fair value cannot be
reliably measured and there is no transaction price.

26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party transactions:

(a) Remuneration for key management is the amounts paid
to the Company’s Directors as disclosed in note 7. Total
remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)).

(b)During the year, a subsidiary of the Company leased a
property from New Champion International Limited (“New
Champion”). New Champion is a company beneficially
owned by Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis
and his family members. In addition, Mr Dennis Lo Hoi
Yeung is a director of New Champion. Rental expenses
incurred during the year amounted to $2,631,000 (2018:
$2,280,000).
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26 EXKRBAERXH (&) 26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

QOEAXAFEER "ARE—KKEBAF (c) During the year, a subsidiary of the Company leased a
MEBEZERAR([EZ])EA—IE property from Hibony Limited (“Hibony”). Hibony is a
¥) % - B I A Pengto International company beneficially owned by Pengto International
Limited(Z AR RERB ETEBEHR Limited (a company beneficially owned by Mr Dennis Lo
B)EREE - I BRBEER Hoi Yeung solely). In addition, Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is
BUYWES FHNEENHEEIHER a director of Hibony. Rental expenses incurred during the
3,120,000t (=Z — /A% : 3,043,000 year amounted to $3,120,000 (2018: $3,043,000).

JT) e

ETRAPEFEBERIZNE (d)Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to

A connected transactions
Mt (QBER TR S HEK LT A The related party transaction in respect of (c) above
FUAEMRATNRHERER S - % constitutes a continuing connected transaction as defined
EERE LMARAEUVAENHREEE in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures
EREANFHEBERS | —EFRED required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided
BT - in the section “Continuing connected transaction” of the

2 Report of the Directors.

=

9 Lt 2 (b)IB EA R 5 32 S iRk LT AR Bl The related party transaction in respect of (b) above

g FUAEMATNFERERS © BE constitutes a continuing connected transaction as defined

2 EaHem/aER FmARAE14AT R in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, however it is exempt

§ BHE - from the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the

s Listing Rules.
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27 RFIREMBEH
(a) R EEEM AR K

27 COMPANY-LEVEL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(a) Company-level statement of financial position

FREEE Non-current assets
RSB AR Interests in subsidiaries (a) 439,734 383,784
RIETIAE B Deferred tax assets 44 107
439,778 383,891
REEE Current assets
FEUBR KA E Yk Trade and other receivables 155,307 185,517
RITIF AR 2 A0 Bank deposits and cash and
ReEEY cash equivalents 744 579
156,051 186,096
RBEE Current liabilities
EEBESAMAENS  Trade and other payables 30837 42,174
RBEEFE 000 ! Netcurrentassets 125214 143,922
EEFRE NET ASSETS 564,992 527,813
EARMEE Capital and Reserves 27(b)
N Share capital 128,650 127,793
EE Reserves 436,342 400,020
ERAm TOTAL EQUITY 564,992 527,813

EEeR_T-AFRA-tTN\BE
LRI o

ERE
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung

HITERE

Executive Chairman

MizE(a) : IRHTB R R 1B IR R A% BR & IF
EWBG - EZHBRRNFBHR
F169 R 1708 o 7N 5 B 30 £ (F ] ffd
BAREEEARIEER R -

Approved and authorised for issue by the

Directors on 28 June 2019.

Chan Chee Shing

PR A B

TTIEABEL

Chief Executive Officer

Board of

Note (a): The interests in subsidiaries represent the unlisted shares
stated at cost. Details of the principal subsidiaries are set
out on pages 169 and 170. The Group does not have any
subsidiary which has a material non-controlling interest.
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27 AFIBEMBEERE 2 27 COMPANY-LEVEL FINANCIAL INFORMATION
(continued)
(b) AR B EEREEK (b) Company-level statement of changes in equity
TR AR RE RIS AR D 1T Details of the changes in the Company’s individual
RS E B R B IS components of equity between the beginning and the end

of the reporting period are set out below:

Bx  ROGE SARR  AARE  REEN
Share Share Contributed Capital  Retained

capital  premium surplus reserve profits
i3 i S T T
Note $'000 $'000 $'000
R=B-t& At 1 April 2017
mA-A 127,164 7,240 28,182 3948 332689 499223
FEEEHAEN Dividends approved in respect
& of the previous year 22(b)i - - - - (138,085) (138,085
TEEREIRN Dividends declared in respect
K& of the current year 22(b)i) - - - - @313 (41313
REEHF Profit for the year = = - - 200475 200475
a REERES 2 Shares issued under share
s 5l option scheme 22(0)() 716 14,127 = = = 14,843
2 BITER Issue expenses - 42) _ - _ )
2 IEREE M Equity-settled share-based
8 RDBERNRS  transactions 22(c)i) - 468 - 928 - 1,396
2 EEAFRH Repurchase of own shares
§ -EffE#E - par value paid ' 22(c)i) (87) = - - - (87)
= —BTHEN ~ premium and transaction
< RHHA costs paid 22(0)i) - 259) - - - Q59
% W=2-NE At 31 March 2018
% ZB=t-H 127,793 19,196 28,182 4876 347766 527813
4k
% R=%-NE At1 April 2018
K mA-H 127,793 19,196 28,182 4876 347,766 527813
LEEEHEN Dividends approved in respect
ke of the previous year 22(b)i - - - - (135208)  (135,208)
AEEEERMN Dividends declared in respect
s of the current year 22(b)() - - - - (47597)  (475597)
KEEGRH Profit for the year - - - - 200598 200,598
REBERES2 Shares issued under share
BI0RG option scheme 22(0)(i) 1,003 19,777 - - - 20,780
188 Issue expenses - (48) - - i} (48)
IR EER Equity-settled share-based
Ry RERRRS  transactions 22(0)(i - 918 - 1,59 - 2512
EERF R Repurchase of own shares
-BfNHE - par value paid 22(c)(i) (146) - - - - (146)
-BREEM ~ premium and transaction
RGRE costs paid 22(c)(i) - (3,712) - - - (3,712)
R=B-N§ At 31 March 2019
=B=t+-H 128,650 36,131 28,182 6,470 365559 564,992




28 EMERIFABER

BRESAMBRREMBHEITANER
Sh AT RIBERRELEMNERER o

EERmEPEREEZDRRARE
BRAFHIBET IR TE22(b) ©

VERHKERKRERE_S—0F
ZSER=Et+—HLEEERME
B WERMMRETRERMN
e
BERMBRRTED  BESHARE
ERASEERE"T-—NAF=A=+—
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RAME - LA RRE - ELEEE
FEToE AR EARMNER

(BAYBREERDE16 - [HE ]
HKFRS 16, Leases

28 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING

PERIOD

Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the following significant event took place
subsequent to the end of the reporting period.

After the end of the reporting period, the Directors proposed a
final dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 22(b).

29POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2019

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 March 2019 and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements. These include the following which
may be relevant to the Group:

FEATBEH
X K FIA R
R

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

—ZE-NF—H—H
1 January 2019

BB (W BREENREZES)RBEF2IN  [EHEZHTRE L] —T—NF—H—H
HK(IFRIC) 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments 1 January 2019
(BBUBREENDNFESSE (S —AFE_T—FHH) —E-NF—H—H
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle 1 January 2019
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KRR ARERESINESHTE -
AEEA R E RN BT RRAERE
BREBENR  BEEMRBEANVGEAR
AZHBERES ©

(BRPBHRELER)DE 165 [HE
WEMFEIN)FARE ARERDEEE
RBEHENKLZHE  ~5ES2KRHEE
D EMRA TR SR T EAREEHEE
R ARBERLHEERESLBEA
EEMBERERFEBEA -

29POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2019 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified some aspects
of HKFRS 16 which may have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements. Further details of the
expected impacts are discussed below. While the assessment
has been substantially completed for HKFRS 16, the actual
impact upon the initial adoption of this standard may differ as
the assessment completed to date is based on the information
currently available to the Group, and further impacts may
be identified before the standard is initially applied in the
Group’s interim financial report for the six months ending 30
September 2019. The Group may also change its accounting
policy elections, including the transition options, until the
standard is initially applied in that financial report.

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 1(i), currently the Group classifies leases
into finance leases and operating leases and accounts for the
lease arrangements differently, depending on the classification
of the lease. The Group enters into some leases as the lessor
and others as the lessee.
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29POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

Once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish
between finance leases and operating leases. Instead, subject
to practical expedients, lessees will account for all leases in
a similar way to current finance lease accounting, i.e. at the
commencement date of the lease the lessee will recognise and
measure a lease liability at the present value of the minimum
future lease payments and will recognise a corresponding
“right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this asset and
liability, the lessee will recognise interest expense accrued
on the outstanding balance of the lease liability, and the
depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of the current
policy of recognising rental expenses incurred under operating
leases on a systematic basis over the lease term. As a practical
expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply this accounting
model to short-term leases (i.e. where the lease term is 12
months or less) and to leases of low-value assets, in which
case the rental expenses would continue to be recognised on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases for properties, plant and equipment which are
currently classified as operating leases. The application of the
new accounting model is expected to lead to an increase in
both assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of the
expense recognition in the statement of profit or loss over the
period of the lease.
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29POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019. As allowed by HKFRS 16, the Group plans
to use the practical expedient to grandfather the previous
assessment of which existing arrangements are, or contain,
leases. The Group will therefore apply the new definition of a
lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that are entered into on
or after the date of initial application. In addition, the Group
plans to elect the practical expedient for not applying the new
accounting model to short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets.

The Group plans to elect to use the modified retrospective
approach for the adoption of HKFRS 16 and will recognise
the cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment
to the opening balance of equity at 1 April 2019 and will not
restate the comparative information. As disclosed in note
24(b), at 31 March 2019 the Group’s future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases amount
to $1,008,742,000 for properties, the majority of which is
payable either between one and five years after the reporting
date or in more than five years.
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Principal Subsidiaries

NES i
xi&z‘“ = 2

Place of incorporation/
establishment and
operation

Name of company

BEERARAA BB
Benley Development Limited Hong Kong
ABRECRYBRERAR BB
Fairwood (Shenzhen) Hong Kong
Development Limited
Fairwood B.V.I. Limited* HBABRES/
BB
Fairwood B.V.I. Limited* The British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
Fairwood Consolidated EERARE %/
Investments Limited* B
Fairwood Consolidated The British Virgin Islands/
Investments Limited* Hong Kong
ARERE (EB)ERAA] BA
Fairwood Fast Food Hong Kong
(Management) Limited
AREREBR R BE
Fairwood Fast Food Limited Hong Kong
Fairwood Trademark B.V.I. EBRARES/
Limited* s
Fairwood Trademark B.V.I.  The British Virgin Islands/
Limited* Hong Kong
FEBRBRAR B
Great Choice Development Hong Kong
Limited
VEERARAR B8
Joybo Development Limited Hong Kong
ALERBBR AT BE
Leon Development Limited Hong Kong
KEERARAR BB
Maxlane Development Hong Kong
Limited

B8/

T E ARG
Particulars of
issued/registered
capital

2R
2 shares

10,0008 %12
10,000 shares

579,437/ &M%
HfE0.01E TR
579,437 shares of
US$0.01 each

TREEI1ETRS
1 share of US$1

Vi)

2 shares

1008 & @M
K579,4370%
ERFERIERD
100 ordinary shares
and 579,437
non-voting
deferred shares

TREEIETRN
1 share of US$1

28R

2 shares

2BAAn

2 shares

Vi)

2 shares

Vi)

2 shares

VNG e

BaL
Percentage of shares held
by the Company
B kS
Direct Indirect
- 100%
- 100%
100% =
100% =
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%

Principal activity

MEHE

Property investment

BAER

Investment holding

BAER

Investment holding

RERR

Investment holding

HRREMER
Restaurant
licences holding

R2BHRER

Operation of a chain

of fast food restaurants

RABRE
Trademark holding

YESIE]

Property investment

NERE
Property investment
NERE
Property investment

MEEE

Property investment
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Principal Subsidiaries

NGIEE S

Name of company

ERRERARAA
Profit Hero Development
Limited

EHERERAA
Santic Development Limited

FIAREREBR DA
Shenzhen Fairwood Fast
Food Limited*

BRNERARAT
Smarteam Development
Limited

RAERARARA

Suncity Development Limited

REZRARARA

Tacco Development Limited

REERBB LA
Time Best Development
Limited

BEERBR AR
Union Hero Development
Limited

ERERBR A
Wallam Development
Limited

Al AV

RO RSB

Place of incorporation/
establishment and
operation

BB
Hong Kong

BB
Hong Kong

HE A
Mainland China

BE
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong
B
Hong Kong
&g
Hong Kong

&g
Hong Kong

&g
Hong Kong

B8/
Tt B ARG E
Particulars of
issued/registered
capital

MR

2 shares

Vi)

2 shares

11,700,000 T
US$11,700,000

28D

2 shares

2B%Btn

2 shares

284D

2 shares

2B

2 shares

Vi)

2 shares

2B

2 shares

FATFHR
Bak
Percentage of shares held
by the Company
B itk
Direct Indirect
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%

Principal activity

MEEE

Property investment

MEHE

Property investment

meEEE R
Operation of a chain
of fast food restaurants

MERE

Property investment

MERE

Property investment

MERE

Property investment

MERE

Property investment

MERE

Property investment

MERE

Property investment

* ALEARWIFHEFRE N ESAER

(@ RZE-NEF=A=+—H  FHEEH
GBS ERNIE R A EHRES
RS ARRS A BE E k R  E R
A% (—ZFEE—)N\E : 5% ) 6% (—FE— )\

fF:5%) o

(b) BB LRRBEEMD EITEERAK -

*  Companies not audited by KPMG

(@) At 31 March 2019, the financial statements of the subsidiaries
not audited by KPMG reflect total revenue and total net assets
constituting approximately 4% (2018: 5%) and 6% (2018: 5%)
respectively of the related consolidated totals.

(b) None of the subsidiaries has any loan capital in issue.
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Five-Year Group Financial Summary

—E-)N\F
2018
FIT
$'000
*E Results:
WA Revenue 2,970,524 2,840,571 2,580,904 2,427,973 2,244,885
£ F Profit from operations 215,204 255,033 249,539 243,072 180,171
RN Finance costs (32) (68) (94) (171) (70)
B R A Profit before taxation 215,172 254,965 249,445 242,901 180,101
FTiSH Income tax (35,225) (38,888) (44,164) (42,123) (36,134)
ANEIERBE  Profit attributable to equity
eyl shareholders of the
Company 179,947 216,077 205,281 200,778 143,967
EEMERE . Assets and liabilities:

WEWME  Hf  Investment properties,
I - HEEM other property, plant
HERFAELH  and equipment and

leasehold land 518,633 546,060 501,299 424,241 383,011
SRS Goodwill 1,001 1,001 1,001 1,001 1,001
BEffEeEe Rental deposits paid 68,517 71,602 69,089 51,670 51,470
HEivomEE Other financial assets 19,825 7,785 7,885 8,405 8,835
EEFRIEEE Deferred tax assets 44 107 145 306 427
MEEE Current assets 667,788 665,157 624,965 656,224 537,356
EEAE Total assets 1,275,808 1,291,712 1,204,384 1,141,847 982,100
mEBE Current liabilities (419,527) (454,875) (417,246) (396,335) (319,847)
FRBas Non-current liabilities (78,603) (73,731) (71,846) (69,174) (62,089)
EEFE Net assets 777,678 763,106 715,292 676,338 600,164
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AEERENREDS
Investment Properties Held by the Group

3 E MRS HEH
Location Existing use Term of lease

H &k Hj
3l Shops Medium-term
il

Bi5m g

EEEN—E

103510405k P48

Shop Unit Nos. 1035-1040 on Level 2

Lowu Commercial Plaza

Guangchang South Road

Luohu District

Shenzhen

PRC

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

RREEBERDR
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